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ITEM

Review Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (Audit Report) for Fiscal Year 2023-2024
IRECOMMEND RECETVE AND FI,LE2023-2024 AUDTT REPORTI

BAC UND

The District is required by law to have an independent audit performed annually on its financial
statements. Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott, LLP ('RAMS") conducted the annual audit for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2024, in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

The audit report has been completed in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report ("ACFR') format.
The completed audit will be submitted to the Government Finance Officers Association ("GFOA') for
review and consideration for a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting. The
District's audit report received this prestigious recognition of accounting excellence the past eleven
consecutive years.

Mr. Scott Manno, CPA, will present the attached audit report to your Honorable Board and will answer
any questions you may have regarding the audit.

RECOMMENDATION

Upon completion of the presentation and public comments, a motion would be in order to accept and
file the Audit Report for Fiscal Year 2023-2024.

ATTACHMENT

A. Audit Report for Fiscal Year 2023-2024
B. Post Audit Letter
C. Report on lnternal Control over Financial Reporting on Compliance and Other Matters Based

on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards
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MISSION STATEMENT

The Nipomo Community Services District's mission is to
provide our customers with reliable, quality,

and cost-effective services now and in the future.
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November 6,2424

To the Board of Directors and Citizens of the Nipomo Communiiy Services District:

We are pleased to present the Nipomo Community Services Disirict's {hereinafter referred to as "the

District") Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the year ended June 30, 2024. The purpose

of this report is to provide the Board of Directors, customers, investors, the public and other interested
parties with reliable financialinlormation about the District.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained in

this reporl, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that has been established for this
purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objeciive is to
provide reasonable, rather lhan absolute, assurance that the financtal statements are free of any material
misstatements.

Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott, LLP, Certified PublicAccountants, have issued an unmodified {"clean")
oprnion on the Nipomo Community Services District's financial statements for the year ended June 30,

2A24.The independent auditor's report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.

Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor's repo* and
provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. The MD&A
complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

Profile of the District

Nipomo Community Services District was organized January 28, 1965 under the provisions of the California
Communrly Services District Law (sections 61000 et seq. of the Government Code of the State of
California) for purposes of supplying water for domestic, irrigation, saniiation, industrial, commercial,
recreation and fire suppression use. The District is located off of Highway '101 on the central coast of

California between San Francisco and Los Angeles, in San Luis Obispo County. The District includes
approximately 4,450 acres of land comprising seven square miles. The District's service area includes
portions of the unincorporated area of Nipomo and currently serves a population of approximately 13,500.

The District provides water service to approximately 4,509 customer accounts and provides sewer service
to approximately 3,?79 customer accounts under iwo separate wastewater systems, the Town Sewer
Division and the Blacklake Sewer Division.

The Distdct has operated under the Board of Director-General Manager form of government since its
inception. Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in a governing board (Board) consisting of five
members elected on a non-partisan basis by quatiiied voters in the District to four-year terms. Board
members serve overlapping four-year ierms. The Board employs the General Manager who ts responsible
for carrying out the policies of the Board, for overseeing the day{o-day operations of the District and the
hiring of all District employees.
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Under law, community services districts may perform a variety of municipal services if authorized to do so
by the residents thereof. The District provides water, sewer, solid waste, limited street tighting, limited street
landscape maintenance and limited drainage and general administrative services.

The District's Board annually adopts a budget prior to the new fiscal year. The budget authorizes and
provides the basis for financial reporting, control of financial operations and accountaO'liity tor the District's
enterprise operations and capital projects. Quarterly financial ieports are also presented io the Board,

Economlc Conditions

On July 2,2015, theOistrict 99gan purchasing supplementalwater from the City of Santa Maria ("City")
pursuant to the May 7, 2013, Wholesale Water Supply Agreement ("Agreement'j. The Agreement haj a
term end date of June 30, 2085, at which time parties ian etect to exieni the Agreement. the terms of the
Agreement between the District-and the City are subject to the contract renewil between the City and the
Central Coast Water Authority of which the City is a member.

During fiscal year 2023-2024, the District purchased 1,1 15 acre-feet of water. The District paid a votumetric
9!a1S3- 9f $2,488.48 per acre-foot (AF) for imported water purchased between Juty 1, edZS to December
31,2023 and $2,545.43. per AF on imported water purchased from January t , ZOZ+ to .lune 30, 2024, plus
avolumetricoperationatco_stof9242.BlOerAF. Ofthel,ll5AF,theDisirictsotdl8b.T6AF(16.660lo)of
the supplementalwater to Woodlands MutualWater Company (WMWC) and 185,76 AF (16.660/) to Gotden
State Water Company (GSWC). The District retained the balance ot zqs.qAAF (66.68y;) for use by District
customers.

The cost of supplemental water is built into the District's water rates. All District customers pay a fixed
water charge based on the water meter size and a volumetric charge based on the number of uniis used,

Relevant Flnancial Policies - lnvestment policy

On April 26, 2023, the Board of Directors of the District adopted a resolution amending the District's
lnvestment Policy. The amendment included certain permitteci investments that enables the District to
invest in United States Treasuries and Certificates of Deposit in compliance with applicable state law. The
United States Treasuries and Certificates of Deposit market at the time had a rate oi ieturn of almost double
when compared to Local Agency lnvestment Fund (LAIF).

Relevant Financial Policies - Drought Response

On July 27,2016, the District adopted Resolution 2016-1421declaring Stage lVWater Shortage Conditions
under the District's 2014 Water Shortage Response and Management Plair, in compliance witn the NMMA
TG Plan. The target gfoujldwqler pumping reduction was a fifty percent (50%) reiuction in groundwater
pumping by the District. The District reached this objective through communitywater conservation efforts
and use of the available imported supplemental water supply.

ln June 2024, the NMMA TG announced the Spring 2A24 Key Wells lndex had improved and the
groundwater basin was_now^i1_a Potentially Severe Water Shortag-e Gondition. Based on this finding, the
Pistric! adopted Resolution 2024-1715 declaring to move to Stage tt water Shortage Condition unOii tne
District's current Water Shortage Contingency Plan. Under the improved conditiois of a Stage lt Water
lhortage Condition, the target groundwater pumping reduction is2O6/o,consistent with the NMMA TG plan.
Although the target reduction for groundwater pumping will decrease from 50% to 2}o/o, the District is
currently able to maintain a pumping level below S0%.

Major lnitiatives - Dana Reserve Project

The District is in the process of annexing two hundred eighty-eight (288) acres known as the Dana Reserve
Project. The development, which is proposed to be 1,37O-residential units, up to 154 accessory dwelling
units, and up to 203,000 square feet of commercial uses, was approved by the San Luis Obisfo Count!
Board of Supervisors on April 24,2024. on August 28,2024, tn6 oistrict'goard approved a negotiatei
P-l9P9Sy tax exchange with the County, authorized an Annexation Agreement with NkT Devetopm6nt LLC
(.NKT'), and endorsed a Plan for Services from the San Luis Obispo County Local Agency Formation
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Commission ("LAFCO'). Annexation proceedings by LAFCO have commenced and a study session was
held by LAFCO on September 19,2024. The LAFCO hearing to consider approving the annexation has
been scheduled for November 14,2024.

The Dana Reserve Project will necessitate substantial upgrades to the District's water and wastewater
infrastructure. Current estimates indicate that capacity charges for the project could generate around $41
million, surpassing the anticipated costs for the identified infiastructure ne+jds over time.

Major lnitiatives

Nioomo $upnlemental Water Proiect
Beginning July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2A24, the District purchased 1,1 15 acre-feet of water from the City
thereby exceeding the minjmum required 1000 acre feet per year (AFY) take or pay volume of water for thi
year. Beginning July 1, 2025, the Dishict is obligated to takil or pay for 2,500 nfV. fo reach this level of
commitment, the District will need to complete the SupplementalWater project (SWp) interties to connect
the purveyors GsWc and WMWC. As of the end of the fiscal year, the purveyor interties project has been
carried over into the fiscal year 2024-2025. The District foreiees completion of the Supplemental Water
Project purveyor interties project by the end of fiscal year 2025.

Blacklake Assessment Disttict 202Q-1
On March 11,2020, the District initiated assessment proceedings with the intention to form the Blacklake
Assessment District (Blacklake Sewer Consolidation). On August 12,2A20, $11,225,000 in bonds were
issued to fund the design, acquisition and construction of certain public capital facilities'needed to combine
the District's two sewer systems serving the town of Nipomo and the Blacklake community. The bonds were
issued pursuant to the provisions of the lmprovement Bond Act of 1915.

The construction for the force main was completed in the winter o12024. The project design, engineering,
and environmental work for the lift station are complete, and conslruction is how unJerwayl witn a]i
expected completion date in the summer o12025.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Excellence in Financiat Repofting to Nipomo Community Services District for its annual
comprehensive financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. fhis was the eleventh consecutive
year that the District achieved this prestigious award. ln order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement,
the Diskict must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized annual comprehensive financialreport.
This report must satisff both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current annual
comprehensive financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement program's requirements
and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

PreParation of this reportrrvas accomplished by the combined efforts of District staff. We appreciate the
dedicated efforts and professionalism that our staff members bring to the District. We would also like to
thank the members of the Board of Directors for their continued support in the planning and implementation
of the Nipomo Community Services Districts fiscal policies.

Respectfully submitted,

Dlenzo Jana
General Manager and
Secretary to the Board of Directors
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I nde pe nde nt Auditor's Re po rl

Board of Directors
Nipomo Community Services District

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the business{ype
activities and the fiduciary fund of Nipomo community services District
(the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

ln our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly,
in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
business-type activities and the fiduciary fund of the District as of
June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position, and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and State Controller's Minimum Audit
Requirements for California Special Districts.

Basr's for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS) and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
states (Government Auditing standards) and the state controller's
Minimum Audit Requirements for California Speciat Disfnbfs. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. we are required to be independent of the District
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. we believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

1
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Responsrb ilities of Management for the Financiat Sfafemenfs

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

ln preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District,s
ability to continue as a going concern tor twl-lvehonths beyond the financial statement date, including
any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor's Responsrbilities for the Audit of the Financiat sfatemenfs

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and
Government Auditing Sfandards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not_detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the financial statements.

ln performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Sfandards, we:

. Exercise professionaljudgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.. ldentiff and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of exfressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinioi
is expressed.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

' Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audilfindings, and certain-internaliontrol-related
matters that we identified during the audit.
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Req u i red S u p plem e nta ry I nfo rm ation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis as listed in the table of contents, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Su pplementary I nformation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements. The supplementary schedules listed
in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with GMS. ln
our opinion, the accompanying supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects,
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other lnformation

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual comprehensive
financial report. The other information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does
not include the basic financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the
basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion
or any form of assurance thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information
and the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. lf, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material
misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Sfandards

ln accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 6,2024, on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering District's internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

{oVo', *n0*r-co* " ,!,*4 LLP.

San Bernardino, California
November 6,2024
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Nipomo Community Serztices District

Management's Discussion and An
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30

alysis
,2024

The_ following Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of activities and financial
performance of the Nipomo Community Services District (District) provides an introduction to the
financial statements of the District for the fiscal year endeO June 30, 2024.Weencourage readers
to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the basic financial statements and
related notes, which follow this section.

Financial Hishlishts

. The District's Net Position increased T.4o/oto $85.6 million.

' During the year the District's operating revenues increased 3.56%, while operating
expenses increased 14.28%.lnterest income earnings increased due to an escalation in
interest rates. Operating expenses increased due to tne addition of a new operations
position, the transition to a new General Manager and an increase in repairs and
maintenance for the fiscalyear.

r Other revenue-purveyors is attributable to Contracts Receivable from Woodlands Mutual
Water Company and Golden State Water Company pursuant to the SupplementalWater
Management and Groundwater Replenishment Agieement dated October 16,2015.

' Capital contributions consist of water and sewer capacity charges collected of $23,547and contributions of Work in process valued at $4,529,6rg from the Blacklake
Assessment District Z0Z0-1 .

Required Financial Statements

The Financial Statements of the District report information utilizing the full accrual basis of
accounting. The Financial Statements conform to accounting prin-iples which are generally
accepted in the United States of America and consist of threelnterrelated statements OesigneO
to provide the reader with relevant, understandable data on the District's financial condition and
operating results. They are 1) the Statement of Net Position, 2) the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and changes in Net position, and 3) the statement of cash Flows.

The Sfafement of Net Position, or the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources,
deferred inflows of resources, and liabilities, measures the financial health of the District. over
time, increases or decreases in the District's net position may serve as a useful indicator of
whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, other nonfinancial factors suchas changes in economic conditions, population growth, and new or changed government
legislation must also be considered.

The Sfafement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes rn Nef Position identifies the District's
revenues and expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. This statement provides
information on the District's operations over the past fiscal year and can be used to determine
whether the District has recovered all of its actual and projected costs through user fees and other
charges.

-5-



N ip omo C ommunity Seroices District

Management's Discussion and
For the Fiscal Year Ended June

Analysis
30,2024

The Sfatement of Cash Flows provides information on the District's cash receipts, cash payments,
and changes in cas]r resulting from operations, investments and financing'""iiuiti"s. From theStatement of Cash Flows, the reader can obtain information on the source and use of cash andthe change in the cash balance since the prior fiscal year.

Financial Analvsis of the District

one of the most important questions asked about the District's finances is, ,,ls the District, as awhole, better off or worse off as a result of this year's activities?" The statement of Net position
and the statement of Revenues, Expenses and bhanges in Net Position report information aboutthe.District in a way that helps answer this questionl These statements include all assets andliabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the 

"""ornting 
used by most

private- sector companies. All of the current yeirs revenues and expenses are tak'en into accountregardless of when the cash is received oi paid. These two statements report the District,s netposition and changes in net position. You can think of the District's net position - the differencebetween assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows ofresources - as one way to measure the District's financial health, or financial position. Over time,increases or decreases in the District's net position are one indicator of whether its financial healthis improving or deteriorating. However, one will need to consider other nonfinancial factors suchas changes in economic conditions, population growth, zoning, and new and changedgovernment legislation.

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the dataprovided in the basic financial statements. The notes to the basic fina;;ial;tal;;ents can befound on pages 18 through 50.

-6-



Nipomo Community Seruices District

Management's Discussion
For the Fiscal Year Ended

and Analysis
June 30, 2024

TABLE 1

Condensed Statements of Net position

2024

Current Year
lncrease/

{Dec2023

$ u,245,972
69.762.015

IAssets
Current and other assets
Capitalassets, net

Totalassets

Deferred outflows

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows

Net position
Net investment in capital
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

$ 34,513,020
75 565.389

$ 267,048
5 .374

110.078.409 104 007.987

1 938 ? .535 fl20.2U\

6 o70.422

1

2,433,046
23,U1,559

2,352,876
23,475,524

80,170
66,035

25.974.605 25 .400 1 05

460.828 550.857 (90 029)

The District's net position at fiscal year June 30,2024 increased $5,g93,962 (7.40%) whencompared to fiscal year end June 30, 2023.

The increase in Net lnvestment in Capital, $5,771,196, represents an increase in capital assetsacquired and placed into service. The increase in Restricted Net position, $g50,i66, representsresources that are subject to external restrictions on their use. The remaining balance ofUnrestricted Net Position, $11,695,400, as of June g0,2024, may be used to meet the District,s
ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors.

54,888,603
18,997,224
11 695.400

$ 85,581 ,227

49,117,407
,19,146,459

12.423,400

_$__Jg.qgr2qg_

5,771,196
850,766

.000)

$ 5,893 ,962

7



N ip omo C ommunity Serztices District

Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 ,2024

TABLE 2
Condensed Statements of Revenues. Expenses and Chanoes in Net Position

2024 2023

Gurrent Year
Increase/

(Decrease)
Operating revenues
Charges for services
Other operating revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Water
Seuer
Other

Total operating expenses

Non-ope rating reve nues and
expenses
lnterest income
Property taxes and rental income
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets
Other revenue - purveyors
lnterest expense

Total non-operating revenues
(expenses)

lncome before contributions

Capital contributions
Capacity charges
Contributions from developers
Contribution from Blacklake

Assessment District 2020-1

Total capital contributions

Change in net position

Mt position - beginning

l{et position - ending

1,297 717

12,501,502 12,071,415 430,087

$ 11,844,017
657,485

$ 10,773,698 $ 1,070,319
(640,232)

7,833,447
3,304,149
1,906,495

6,917,274
2,905,640

59't 14

13,044,091 11 14 228

916,173
398,509
31 5,1 81

1,629,863

1,687,206
936,430

17,580

4,752
(762,592)

750,473
892,863

5,325
147,528

(766,939)

936,733
43,567
12,255

(142,776)
4,347

1,883,376 1,029,250 854,126

1,340,787 1,686,437 (345,650)

23,547 309,889
522,310

(286,342)
(522,310)

4,529,628 1,446,461 3,083,167

4,553,175 278 660 2,274,515

5,893,962 3,965,097 1,928,865

79,687,265 75,722,168 3,965,097

$ 85.581

-8-
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N ip omo C ommunity Seraices District

Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024

Totaloperating revenues increased $430,087 (3.56%). Water Revenue increased $126,636, due
to an 8.9% scheduled rate study increase. Town Division sewer revenues increased $111,640
due to a 3.8o/o scheduled rate study increase and Blacklake Division sewer revenues increased
$67,008, due to a16.5% scheduled rate study increase. The remaining increase of $124,803 is
attributable to miscellaneous income from various funds.

Total operating expenses increased $1,629,863 (14.28o/o). Operational costs increased
throughout the year and the cost of supplemental water purchased from the City of Santa Maria
increased.

District non-operating revenues and expenses increased $854,126. The increase in interest rates
resulted in an increase in interest income of 9936,733. Revenue recognized as contracts
receivable from Woodlands Mutual Water Company and Golden State Water Company pursuant
to the Supplemental Water Management and Groundwater Replenishment Agreement dated
October 16, 2015 decreased $142,776, due to completion of construction projects in the prior
fiscalyear.

TABLE 3
CapitalAssets

More information about the District's Capital assets is presented in Note 5 of the Notes to Basic
Financial Statements.

2024 2023

Current Year
lncrease/

(Decrease)

Non-depreciable assets
Depreciable assets
Accumu lated depreciation

$ 9,334,579
99,498,012

(33,267,202)

$ 4,B54,054
95,852,837
(30,944,876

$ 4,480,525
3,645,175

(2,322,326)

Total capital assets, net _q_rs,56q,38e_ $ 69,762,015 $ 5,803,374

The increase in depreciable assets is attributable to construction work in progress being
completed and placed in service. ln addition, the increase in non-depreciable assets reflects the
projects still under construction.

Total capital assets, net increased as the costs of equipment purchases, and on-going
construction projects exceeded the increase in accumulated depreciation.

-9-



Nip omo Community S eraices District

Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2024

TABLE 4
Lonq Term Debt

2024 2023

Certificates of Participation Series 2013
Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 2013A
Certificates of Participation Series 2022
Subscription Liability
Financed Purchase

$ 8,036,272
1,754,968

10,265,110
57,936

562,s00

$ B,187,655
1,911,838

10,545,115

Current Year
lncrease/
Decrease

$ (151,383)
(156,870)
(280,005)

57,936
562 500

Total long-term debt $ 20,676 ,786 $ 20,644,608 $ 32 178

Standard & Poor's Rating Service reviewed the Certificates of Participation Series 2013 and
Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 2013A in August 2018 and raised the underlying rating from
"A" to "AA-". ln January 2022, Standard & Poor's reaffirmed its "AA-"rating.

Standard & Poor's Rating Service reviewed the Certificates of Participation Series 2022 and
assigned a rating of "AA-".

The Standard & Poor's rationales are available for review upon request.

Additional information on long{erm debt is presented in Note 6 of the Notes to Basic Financial
Statements.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The District is governed by provisions of the California Special District Code that require rate-
based revenues must cover the cost of Operations, Maintenance and Repairs (OM&R) and capital
improvement projects. The District is not subject to general economic conditions such as
increases or reductions in property tax values or other types of revenues, such as sales taxes,
that vary with economic conditions. Accordingly, the District sets its rates to its users to cover the
costs of OM&R, capital improvement projects, plus any increments for known or anticipated
changes in enterprise costs.

On May 7,2013, the District entered into a Wholesale Water Supply Agreement that provides a
mechanism through which the District will purchase supplemental water from the City of Santa
Maria. The District is obligated to purchase minimum quantities of water each year regardless of
the District's ability to accept and deliver said water. The District is currently required to purchase
1,000-acre feet per year (year seven of the contract). ln year eleven (fiscal year 2025-2026), the
minimum delivery requirement will reach 2,500-acre feet, the highest level in the purchase
agreement.

-1 0-



N ip omo C ommunity SerCIices District

Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2024

A court judgment issued in connection with litigation regarding the Santa Maria groundwater basin
requires Golden State Water Company, Rural Water Company (subsequently purchased by
Golden State Water in 2015), and Woodlands Mutual Water Company to pay their respective
shares of the costs of the supplemental water being purchased from Santa Maria and the
infrastructure improvements required for the delivery of the supplemental water to the NMMA.
The Nipomo Supplemental Water Project Supplemental Water Management and Groundwater
Replenishment Agreement was executed on October 16,2015. This agreement obligates those
three companies to pay 33.32o/o of the supplementalwater costs and related project capitalcosts
beginning as of July 2,2015.

The District completed a water rate study in August 2020. The fourth of five rate increases that
went into effect January 1 ,2024.

The Town Division completed a wastewater rate study in April 2021. The fourth of five rate
increases will go into effect July 1, 2024. The Blacklake Sewer Division had its last rate increase
effective April 1 ,2023.

Requests for lnformation

This financial report is designed to provide the District's elected officials, customers, invetors,
creditors and other interested parties with an overview of the District's financial condition, as well
as insight into current fiscal practices and management. Should the reader have questions
regarding the information included in this report orwish to request additionalfinancial information,
please contact the District's Finance Department at 148 South Wilson Street, Nipomo, CA93444
or (805) 929-1133.

-11-
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N ip omo C ommunity S entice s District

Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30 2024

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2)
lnvestments (Note 3)
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable - other
Unbilled utilities receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Accrued franchise fees
Due ftom County
Contract receivable, current portion (Note 4)

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (Note 2 & 3)
Restricted cash - funded replacement (Note 2 & 3)
Cash with fiscal agent (Note 2 & 3)
Deposits and other assets
Contract receivable, less current portion (Note 4)
Capital assets:

Capital assets, not being depreciated (Note 5)
Depreciable capital assets, net (Note 5)

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOVI/S OF RESOURCES
OPEB related (Note 8)

Pension related (Note 7)
Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Deposits and retentions
Accrued liabilities
Current portion of long-term liabilities (Note 6)

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Net OPEB liability (Note 8)
Net pension liability (Note 7)
Longterm liabilities, less cunent portion

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
OPEB related (Note B)

Pension related (Note 7)
Total defened inflows of resources

NET POSITION (Note 9)
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for system expansion
Restricted for system replacement
Unrestricted

Total net position

$ 14,860,665
5,859,346

440,649

2,000
1,071 ,000

270,455
6,320

29,100
164,575

22.704 ,1 10

37,516
1,959,024

3,167,082
50,086

6,595,202

9,334,579
66,230,810
87

1 10,078,409

761,792

1,'t76,459
1,938,251

1,162,832
203,593
286,980
779,641

2,433,046

1,019,022
2,514,162

23,541,559

25,974,605

424,262
36,566

460,828

54,888,603
16,986,483
2,010,741

11

$ 85.581

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements
_12-
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Nipomo Community Serztices District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net position
Proprietary Funds
Forthe Year Ended June 30,2024

Operating revenues
Charges for services
C harges for services-purveyors
C harges for services-purveyor reim burs em ents
Other operating revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Purchased water
Purchased water related expenses
Purchased water- purveyors
Personnel
Contractual services
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Other supplies and expenses
lnsurance
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
lnterest income
Property taxes
Cellsite rentalincome
Gain on disposal of capital assets
Other revenue - purveyors
lnterest expense

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

lncome before contributions

Capital Contributions
Capital contributions received

Total contributions

Change in net position

Total net position - beginning

Total net position - ending

$ 10,852,309
934,292

57,426
657 485

12,501 ,502

1,869,695
197,453
934,282

3,478,632
218,392
838,627
560,013

2,236,881
328,317

2,381,809
13,044,091

(542,589)

1,687,206
911,557
24,873
17,580

4,752
592)

1,883,376

1,U0,787

4, 553,175
4,553,175

5,893,962

79,687,265

$ 581,227

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements
_1 3_



N ip omo C ommunity S entices District

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30,2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from operating revenue
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON.CAPITAL FINAI{CING ACTIVITIES
Property tax revenues
Cellsite rental income

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

CASH FLOVI'S FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINAT{CING ACTIVITIES
Capital contributions
Acquisition of capital assets
Principal received on contract receivable
lnterest received on contract receivable
Principal paid on debUsubscriptions
lnterest paid on debUsubscriptions
Proceeds from debt issuance
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOI'I'S FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
lnterest income
Purchase of investments
Sale of investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning

Cash and cash equivalents - ending

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to
the Statement of Net Position:

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash - funded replacement
Cash with fiscalagent

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

$ 12,267,939
(7,158,472)
(3,310,476)
1,798 991

901,891
24,873

926,764

23,548
(3,019,528)

152,739
422,030

(604,120)
(785,850)

16,865
17,s80

(3,776,736)

1,133,162
(7,807,e05)
7,662 778

988,035

(62,946)

20,087,233

$ 20. 024,287

$ 14,860,665

37,516
1,959,024
3,167,082

$ 20,024

The accompanying notes are an integral paft of these basic financial statements
-14-
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N ip omo C ommunity S ervices District

Statement of Cash Flows, (Gontinued)
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Reconciliation of operating incorne to net cash provided by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided
by operating activities:

Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable - other
Unbilled utilities receivable
Accrued franchise fees
Deposits and other assets
Deferred outflows of resources OPEB
Deferred outflows of resources pension
Accounts payable
Deposits and retentions
Accrued liabilities
Compensated absences
Net OPEB liability
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows of resources OPEB
Deferred inflows of resources pension

Net cash provided by operating activities

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:
Capital assets acquired through capital contributions
Subscription liabilities
Subscription acquis ition
Capital assets acquired through financing
Financed purchase payable

$ (542,589)

2,381,809

(s5,648)
(2,000)

(161,000)
27,930

(356)

137,839
(17,555)
25,534

(44,745)
(14,685)
(28,806)
(43,41e)
226,811
(67,344)
(22,685)

$ 1. 798,991

$ 4,529,627
97,056

(e7,056)
545,635

(545,635)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements
_15_



N ip omo C ommunity S entices District

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Fund
June 30, 2024

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash with fiscal agent
Special assessments receivable - current

Totalassets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Bonds payable - current
Bonds payable - noncurrent

Total liabilities

Custodial Fund
N 2020-1

$ 2,082,274
5,145,453

3,867
7,231,594

47,372
105,340
255,000

11,230,253
11 637 965

NET POSITtON (DEF|C|T) $ (4,406,371)

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of these basic financial statements
_16_



N ip omo C ommunity S eraices District

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Fund
Forthe Year Ended June 30,2024

ADDITIONS
Assessment payoff
lnterest income
Assessments collected

Totaladditions

DEDUCTIONS
lnterest expense
Administrative costs
Contribution to Blacklake Sewer

Totaldeductions

GustodialFund
N 2020-1

$ 21,635
382,094
570,117
973,846

292,676
5,745

4,529,627
4, 828,049

(3,8U,202)

(552,'169)

$ (4,406,371)

Change in net position

Net position (deficit) - beginning of year

Net position (deficit) - end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral paft of these basic financial statements
-17-



Nip omo C ommunity Seraices District

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30,2024

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTTNG POL|C|ES

Organization

The Nipomo Community Services District (District) is a multi-purpose special district and was
formed on January28, 1965 and began operations in November 1966. The District is a political
subdivision of the State of California and operates under a Board of Directors - General Manager
form of government. The District provides water, sewer, street lighting, solid waste, street
landscape maintenance, drainage and general administrative services.

The District complies with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and all relevant
U.S. Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. These technical
pronouncements establish criteria for determining the organization's activities and functions that
are included in the financial statements of a governmental unit.

Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, the District would include in this report all funds of all agencies
and boards that are controlled by, or dependent upon, the District's legislative body. The criteria
of control are determined on the basis of financial accountability, imposition of will, and financial
benefit or burden.

The Nipomo Community Services District Public Facilities Corporation is a component unit of the
District. This Corporation was formed in 2003 to issue Revenues Certificates of Participation
(COP's). COP's were issued in 2003,2013 and 2022.The financial activity of the corporation is
blended into the financial statements of the District.

The District is a member of the Special District Authority Risk Management Joint Powers Agency,
which was organized for the purpose of providing general liability, automobile, errors and
omissions, and property loss insurance coverage to special districts. This organization is financed
through premium charges to each member. This organization does not meet the aforementioned
reporting entity criteria and therefore is not included in the accompanying financial statements.

P ro prieta ry F i n a n ci al Sfafemenfs

The accounts of the District are organized into proprietary/enterprise funds. Enterprise funds use
the economic resources measurement focus. The accounting objectives are a determination of
net income, financial position, and cash flows. All assets, deferred outflows of resources and
liabilities, deferred inflows of resources associated with an enterprise fund's activities are included
on the statement of net position.

Fiduciary Fund

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the District for the Nipomo Community
Services District Assessment District No. 2020-1 (Blacklake Sewer Consolidation) which issued
bonds to finance the acquisition and construction of certain public capital facilities to its
wastewater system for the purpose of combining the Town and Blacklake sewer systems, which
the properties within the Assessment District will benefit from.

-1 B-



Nipomo Community Sercices District

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30,2024

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Basis of Accounting

The enterprise funds and the fiduciary fund of the District are accounted for using the accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues, including user fees and service charges, are recognized when
earned, and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

An annual budget is adopted by the Board of Directors at the start of each fiscal year. Any changes
or revisions to that budget throughout the year must be approved by the goard of Directors. 

-

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions thai affect certain reportel
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Operating Reyenues and Expenses

Operating revenues, such as charges for services (water and wastewater fees), result from
exchange transactions associated with the principal activities of the District. Exchange
transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-
operating revenues, such as property taxes and investment income, resulf from non-exchange
transactions or ancillary activities in which the District gives (receives) value without direcily
receiving (giving) equalvalue in exchange.

Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and
depreciation on capital assets. All expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating expenses.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid investments
with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalenis. 

'

Investments

lnvestments are stated at their fair value which represents the quoted or stated market value.
lnvestments that are not traded on a market, such as investments in external pools, are valued
based on the stated fair value as represented by the external pool

-1 9-



NorE 1: suMMARy oF slGNtFtcANT AccouNTtNG pollctES, (continued)

Accounts Receivable

water and sewer charges are billed monthly for all customers. property liens are placed whencustomer account receivables are deemed uncollectible by the District. The District did notexperience any significant bad debt losses and therefore no piovision has been made for doubtfulaccounts. Accounts receivable is shown at full value

Capital Assefs

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual costs are notavailable' other donated capital assets are valued at their acquisition value on the date received.The capitalization thre.shold forallcapitalassets is $5,000. Depreciation nas Oeen provided overthe estimated useful life of the asset using the straight-tinemethod. The estimated useful livesare as follows:

Wastewater Treatment plant and Collection System
Water Supply/Distribution System
Buildings/Blowers
General Plant Machinery and Equipment

Compensafed Absences

Depending on the length of continuous service, a range of 10-20 vacation and 12days of sickleave per year may be accumulated by. each empl6yee. The District accrues a liability forcompensated absences which meet the following crit,erii:

1' The District's obligation relating to employee's rights to receive compensation for futureabsences is attributable to employee's services alrelady rendered.2 The obligation rerates to rights that vest or accumurate.3. Payment of the compensation is probable.
4. The amount can be reasonably estimated.

ln accordance with the above criteria, the District has accrued a liability for vacation and sick paywhich has been earned but not taken by District employees-

Nip omo C ommunity Seraices District

Notes to the Basic Financiat Statements
For the Year Ended June 30,2024

Net Position

The financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is categorized as follows:

1' Net lnvestment in Capital Assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by any debt outstanding against the acquisition,construction or improvement of those assets.2' Restricted - This component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilitiesand deferred infrows of resources rerated to those assets.3' Unrestricted - This component of net position consists of net position that does not meet thedefinition of restricted net position or net investment in capital assets.

50 years
20-50 years
20 years
5-1 0 years

-20-



N ip omo C ommunity Serztices District

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30,2024

NorE 1: SUMMARY oF slcNlFtcANT AccouNTtNG poltctES, (continued)

Net Position Flow Assumption

Sometimes the District will fund expenses for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g.
restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. ln order to calculate the amounG
to report as restricted net position and unrestricted net position in the proprietary fund financial
statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are
considered to be applied. lt is the District's policy to consider restricted net position to have been
depleted before unrestricted net position is applied.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the Plan and additions to/deductions from the Plan's fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. lnvestments are reported at fair value.

GASB 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within
certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used.

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the District's plan (OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan's
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis. For this purpose, benefit
payments are reported at fair value.

GASB 75 require that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within
certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:

Valuation Date
Measurement Date
Measurement Period

Valuation Date
Measurement Date
Measurement Period

June 30,2022
June 30, 2023
July 1 , 2022 to June 30,2023

June 30,2022
June 30, 2023
July 1,20221o June 30,2023

-21-



N ip omo Cotnmunity Seraices District

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

NorE 1: SUMMARY oF slcNlFlcANT AccouNTlNG PoLtctES, (continued)

Capital Contributions

Capital contributions are recorded when cash for capacity fees or capital assets is received from
developers, customers, or other governmental entities, and the purpose is for other than operating
expenses.

Property Taxes

The County of San Luis Obispo bills and collects property taxes for the District. The County
charges the District for these services. Tax revenues are recognized by the District in the year
received. The property taxes are levied on July 1 and are due on November 1 and March 1.
Property taxes become delinquent after December 10 and April 10 for the first and second
installments, respectively. The lien date is January 1.

Special Assessme nt Debt

ln August 2020, the District issued Assessment District No. 2020-1 bonds in the amount of
$11 ,825,293. The bonds are not secured by the general taxing power of the District. The bonds
were secured by the unpaid assessment on each parcel of land. The District is not obligated in
any manner. As of June 30, 2O24,the outstanding balance is 910,965,000.

NOTE 2: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2024, are classified as follows

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash - funded replacement
Cash with fiscal agent

Total cash and cash equivalents

$ 14,860,665

37,516
1,959,024
3,167,092

$ 20,o24,287
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N ipomo C ommunity S eraices District

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30 ,2024

NOTE 2: CASH AND CASH EeU|VALENTS, (continued)

cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2024, consist of the following

Cash on hand
Bank deposits
Cash with fiscalagent
lnvestment in LAIF

$ 600
3,297,303
3,167,081

13,559,303

Totalcash and cash equivalents $ 2O,OZ4,ZI7

NOTE 3: INVESTMENTS

lnvestments Authorized by the District's lnvestment policy

The District is authorized to invest in the following institutions:

1. County pooled funds (California Government Code SS 27133(g), 53635,61053)2. The Local Agency lnvestment Fund created by th; califo;ia state Treasury
(Catifornia Government Code SS 16429.1, 61053)3' One or more FDIC insured Aants and/or Savings and Loan Associations that are
designated as District depositories by resolltion of the Board of Directors
(California Government Code gg 53630 et seq., 61053).4' U.S. Treasuries and other government obligations for which the full faith and credit
of the United States are pledged for payment of principal and interest, provided
that the maximum maturity is five (5) years. There shali ue no limits on the dollar
amount or percentage that the District may invest in U.S. Treasuries.5' Federally. insured time deposits ("Certifiiates of Deposit") in state or federally
chartered banks, savings and loans or credit unions, provided that all such
investments shall be federally insured, fully collateralized in accordance with
California law. The maximum maturity of suih deposits shall not exceed five (5)
years.

6 Negotiable Certificates of Deposit ("NCD') issued by a nationally or state-chartered
bank, a savings association or a federal association, a state or iederal credit union,
or by a federally licensed or state-licensed branch of a foreign bank, provided thai
not more than 30% of the portfolio invested shall be invest6d in a combination of
federally Insured non-negotiable certificates of deposit, and the maximum maturity
does not exceed five (5) years.
Such other financial institutions or securities that may be designated by the Board
of Directors from time to time in compliance with california anl rederal la*.
Proceeds of bond issuance shall be invested in accordance with the permitted
investment provisions of their specific bond indentures or other instrumentproviding for the bond issuance. (california Government code
$S 5e22(d), 53601(m)).

7.

8.
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NOTE 3: INVESTMENTS, (continued)

Disclosure Relating to lnterest Rate Risk

The District's investment policy contains specific provisions intended to limit the District's
exposure to interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

lnvestments of debt proceeds held by a bond trustee are governed by provisions of the debt
agreements, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the District's
investment policy. The table below identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements that
address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Authorized lnvestment Type
Money Market Mutual Funds
Federal Agency Securities
State and Local lnstruments
Certificates of Deposits
Repurchase Agreements
Local Agency lnvestment Fund (LAtF)

Maximum Maturitv
5 Years
5 Years
5 Years
5 Years
5 Years
5 Years

lnterest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates may adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. The weighted average maturity of
the investments contained in the LAIF investment pool is approximately 217 days.

lnvestments al June 30,2024:

Remaining
Maturity

lnvestment Type Total
12 Months
or Less

Certificates of Deposit
U.S. Treasury Bills

Total investments

$ 2,060,353
3,7gg,gg3

$ 2,060,353
3,798,993

$ 5,859,346 $5 346
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NOTE 3: TNVESTMENTS, (continued)

lnvestment in State Investment poot

The District is a voluntary participant in the-LocalAgency lnvestment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated
by California Government code Section 16429.1 uioerine oversight of the Treasurer of the Stateof California. The fair value of the District's investment in this pool is reported in the accompanyingfinancialstatements atamounts based upon the entity's proirata shaie of the fairvalue provided
by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that porttoiio) The batanceavailable for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintaineJ nv lnrr, which arerecorded on an amortized cost basis. LAIF has a- minimum $5,000 transaction amount inincrements of $1 ,000 with a maximum 15 transactions (combination of deposits and withdrawals)per month. LAIF requires a one-day prior notice for deposits and withdrawals of $10 million ormore.

Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to theholder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationallyrecognized statistical rating organization. Presehted below- is the minimum Lting ,equired by(where applicable) the california Government code, the Districi'. p"ll"v, 
"ii;bt ";;:"rents, andthe actual ratings as of the fiscal year ended for each investment type.

lnvestments at June 30,2024.

lnvestment Tvpe Total
Minimum Legal

Ratinq
Exempt from
Disclosure

Certificates of Deposit
U.S. Treasury Bills

Total investments

Custodial Credit Risk

$ 2,060,353
3,798,993

$ 5,859,346

N/A
N/A

$ 2,060,353
3,798.

$ 5,859,346

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of the failure of a depository financialinstitution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recovercollateral securities that are in the possession of an outsid'e party. The California Governmentcode and the District's inveslment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that wouldlimit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, oiner tran tne rolowinf provision fordeposits: The California Government Code requiies that a financial institution s6crr" depositsmade by the state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateralpool held by a depository regulated under state law (unt6sJso waived by the governmental unit).
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NOTE 3: INVESTMENTS, (continued)

Custodial Credit Risk, (continued)

The fair value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110o/o of the total
amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure
District deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgages notes having a value of 150% of the
secured public deposits. The District may waive collateral requirements for deposits which are
fully insured up to $250,000 by the Federil Deposit lnsurance borporation (FDIC).

As of June 30, 2024, the District's deposits with financial institutions in excess of the Federal
Deposit lnsurance Corporation (FDIC) limits were fully collateralized by securities in a separate
account held by the same institution, but not in the District's name.

The custodial risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty
(e.9., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The California
Government Code and the District's investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements
that would limit the exposure to custodialcredit risk for investments. With respect to investments,
custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments in marketable securities. Custodial
credit risk does not apply to local government's indirect investment in securities through the use
of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as LAIF).

Concentration of Risk

The District's investment policy does not contain limitations on the amounts that can be invested
in any one governmental agency or non-governmental issuer beyond that as stipulated by the
California Government Code, except for no more than 30% of the portfolio can be negotlable
Certificates of Deposit. As of June 30, 2024, the District's deposit portfolio with U.S. Treasury
bills, Certificate Deposits, and LAIF, was 100o/o.

Fair Value Measurements

Generally accepted accounting principles establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. This hierarchy consists of three broad
levels: Level 1 inputs consist of quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets and liabilities in
active markets that a government can access at the measurement date, Level 2 inputs that are
observable for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, and Level 3 inputs have the lowest
priority and consist of unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.

Fair Value lVleasurement Usinq
lnvestments by Fair Value Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Certificates of Deposit
U.S. Treasury Bills

$ 2,060,353
3,798,993

$ $ 2,060,353 $
3, 798,993

5,859,346 $Total lnvestments by Fair Value Level $
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Notes to the Basic Financialstatements
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NOTE 4: CONTRACT RECETVABLE

On October 16,2015, the Supplemental Water Management and Groundwater Replenishment
Agreement (the Agreement) was made between the Ni-pomo Community Services District, Rural
lVater Company, the Woodland Mutual Watel Company of San Luis Obispo County and GoldenState Water Company, effective July 1 , 2015. The 

-Parties, 
along with hundreds of other

individuals and entities are parties to certain legal proceedings entifled Santa Maria Valley Water
Conservation District v. City of Santa Maria, et a-|., Superior C6urt of the State of California, County
of Santa Clara, Consolidated Cases Qv770214 (Sania Maria Litigation), regarding tn" respective
rights of the litigants to groundwater resources in the Santa Miria drouiO waier Basin. After
lengthy proceedings, the court entered into an amended judgment on April 17,2014 whichprovides for the long{erm management of the Basin water'resources. The Judgment requires
ry95D to ultimately purchase and transmit a minimum of 2,S00 acre-feet of NipomJSupptemental
Water each year. The District is further required to employ its best efforts to timel' implement theNipomo Supplemental Water Project. The Judgment further provides that onte the Nipomo
Supplemental Water is capable of being delivered, the Parties to the Agreement are to purchase
designated portions of the Nipomo SupIlemental Water each year to offiet ground water pumping
in the Nipomo Mesa Management Area.

The District has entered into a Wholesale Water Supply Agreement with the City of Santa Maria
dated May7,2013. The District and City of Santa MiriJis agreement provides a mechanism
through which the District may purchase Nipomo Supplemental Water for sale and distribution in
the Nipomo Supplemental Water Project, consistent witn ootigations in the Judgment. The District
has completed construction of the first stage of the Nipomo Supplemental Water project and the
District began taking delivery of Nipomo supplementat water as'of July 1,2015.

on or about June25,2015, the California Public Utilities Commission approved Golden StateWater Company's acquisition of Rural Water Company. The Golden dtate Water Company
assumed the entirety of Rural Water Company's benefits and obligations under such Agreer"ni.
The purpose of the Agreement is to enable the Parties to meet th6ir respective obligations underthe Judgement, provide payment to NCSD for each Pafi's allocation of costs, and for the
distribution and use of Nipomo Supplemental Water. Per the Agreement, the District is to operatethe Nipomo Supplem_ental Water Agreement as an enterlrise fund, separating all costs
associated to Nipomo Supplemental Water Project within and only to that fund. The amortizationperiod for capital costs js 30 years beginning July 1 , 2015. lnteresiwill be charged monthly on theremaining unamortized balance as of the prioi month end. As of June go, i024, the Contract
Receivable associated with the Agreement is $6,759,777.
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NOTE 5: CAPITAL ASSETS

Changes in capital assets for the current year were as follows:

June 30,

2023 Additions
Non-depreciable capital assets

Land
Construction in progress

$ 1,1 13,700 $
3,740,354 6,986,875 (2,506,350)

Total non-depreciable
capital assets 4,854,054 6 986,875 _(2,506,350) 9,s34,579

Deletions/
Transfers

June 30,
2024

$ $ 1,113,700

Depreciable capital assets :

Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Right-to-use subscription

92,604,118
3,248,719

2,659,940
947,662

95,264,058
4,136,898

97,056

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements (28,465,790) (2,074,073)
Equipment Q,4Z9,OB6) (275,3A4)

Total depreciable capital assets

(59,483)
97 056

3,704,658 (59,483) 99,498,012

ss,ias
(30,539,863)

(2,694,987)
(32,352\

(33,267,202\

66,230,810

Right-to-use subscription (32,352)
(30,944,876) e381,809) 59,483

Netdepreciablecapitalassets 64,907 ,961 1,322,849

Totalcapitalassets, net _q=qg/q4lg $8 ,309,724 $ (2.506,350) $

Depreciation expense for the period ended June 30, 2024 was $2,3g1,80g
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NOTE 6: LONG-TERM LtABtLtTtES

The summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2024 isas follows:

June 30,
2023

June 30,
2024

Due Within
One Year

$ 165,000

270,000

Certifi cates of participation:
Revenue COp,s series 2013

Unamortized discount
Revenue COp's series 2022

Unamortized premium
TotalCOp's

Revenue bonds 2013A
Unamortized premium

Total revenue bonds

Subscription liability

Financed purchase payable

Compensated absences

Total long-term liabilities

$ 8,360,000 $
(172,345)

'10,045,000

$ (160,000)

8,617
(260,000)

(20,005)115

$ 8,200,000
(163,728)

9,785,000
480,1 10

18,732,770 (431.388) 18.301 ,382

1,805,000

1 ,91 1.838

_ (145,000) 1,660,000
94,968

155,000

fi56,870) 1. 754,968

97.056 (39,1 20) 57,936 41,009

562,500 562.500

111,230

45.246

140,036 '156,992 (1 85,798) 103,386

$ 20, 7U,U4 $ 816,548 $ (813.1 76\ $ 20,788,016 $ 779,U1

Certificates of participation

The District issued $9,660,000 of Revenue certificate of participation (cop,s) on June 21,2013.The proceeds are to be used for the supplemental water project phase 1. The cop,s bearinterest ranging from 1.0% to 4.625% p", 
"nnur.

The outstanding 2013 bonds.contain a provision that if an event of default occurs and continues,the timing of repayment of outstanding amounts become due if (1) if the District is unable to makea payment' (2) if the District fails perform 
-any of the agreements or covenants required to beperformed by it under the lnstallment sale Agreement, aiJru"n default continues ror a period ofthirty (30) days afterthe District has been glyJn no1rce iir *ritiri of such defautt by the corporation;or (3) the District files a petition or answer seeking 

"rr"njh"nt or reorganization under thefederal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable taw 6r ln" u-nit"o states or"nme'c" or any statetherein, or if a court of competent iurisoiction ,ppr*", 
" 

p"tiiion filed with or without the consentof the District seeking- arrangement or reorganization unb". in".r"deral bankruptcy laws or anyother applicable law of the uniteo states 6fAr"ri"" 
";;il;i.i" therein, or if under the provisionsof any other law for the relief or aid of debtors any court of competent jurisdi"iion a"srmes custodyor control of the District or of the whole or any substantial pari-or its property.
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NOTE 6: LONG-TERM LtABtLtTtES, (continued)

Gertificates of Participation, (continued)

Principal is to be paid ann_ually starting September 1, zo14 through september 1, 2o4g.Annualprincipal payments range from g160,000 to $22S,000'asfollows:

Year Ending
June 30 Principal lnterest Total

2025
2026
2027
2028
2029

2030-2034
2035-2039
2040-2044

$ 165,000 $
175,000
190,000

195,000
195,000

1,335,000
2,655,000

362,000
355,200
348,100
340,800
333,200

1,527,917
1,074,925

396,596

$ 527,000
530,200
529,100
525,900
528,200

2,962,917
3,729,925
3,706,596

_$12,938,638

3,31 0,000

n"r"rr" C",ttt""t t t
The District issued $10,630,000 of Revenue certificate of participation (cop,s) in March 2022.The proceeds were used to refund the outstanding balance of the 2012 Revenue certificate ofParticipation and fund a portion of the costs of cirtain capital improvements. The cop,s bearinterest ranging from 1.5% to 4.OO% per annum.

The District refunded the Series 2012 coP's to reduce its total debt service payments by$2,113,554 and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the debtservice payments on the ord and new deit, ress any prioitunos on hand) of $1,033,3gg.

The oulstan ding 2022 bonds contain a provision that if an event of default occurs and continues,the timing of repayment of outstanding amounts become due if (1) if the District is unable to makea payment, (2) if the District fails perform any the other agreements or covenants required hereinto be performed by it, and such default has iontinued for-a period of 30 days .n"|. tn" District hasbeen given notice in writing of such default by the corporition or the Truitee; or (e) the Districtfiles a petition or answer seeking arrangement or reorganization under the fedeial bankruptcylaws or any other applicable law oJ tne united States of imerica or any state therein, or if a courtof competent jurisdiction approves a petition filed with orwithout the consent of the District seekingarrangement or reorganization under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law ofthe United states of America or any state therein, or if under the provisions of aiv other law forthe relief or aid of debtors any court of competent jurisdiction assumes custody or control of theDistrict or of the whole or any substantial part of its property-.

$4,200,000 $4,738 ,638
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NOTE 6: LONG-TERM LlABlLlTtES, (continued)

Gertificates of Participation, (continued)

Principal is to be paid annually starting June 1 , 2022 through June 1 , 2048. Annual principal
payments range from $260,000 to $555,000 as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal lnterest Total

2025
2026
2027
2028
2029

2030-2034
2035-2039
2040-2044
2045-2048

270,000
275,000
285,000

300,000
305,000

1,740,000
2,090,000

2,400,000
2,120,000

$ 314,750
310,700
299,700
288,300
276,300

1,186,700
830,563
525,656
158,100

$ 584,750
595,700
584,700

588,300
581,300

2,926,700
2,920,563

2,925,656
2,278,100

$

$ 9,785,000 $4,190,769 $ 13,975,769

Revenue Bonds

Revenue Bonds 2013A

The District issued $2,845,000 of Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 20134 on May30,2013.
The proceeds were used to refund the Revenue Certificate of Participation (COP's) that were
originally issued on May 1,2003. The Refunding Revenue Bonds bear interest ranging fromJ.To/o
lo 4.8o/o per annum. Principal is to be paid annually starting September 1,-2014 through
September 1,2032.

The outstanding 2013A bonds contain a provision that if an event of default occurs and continues,
the timing of repayment of outstanding amounts become due if (1) if the District is unable to make
a payment, (2) if the District fails perform any of the covenants, agreements or conditions required
t9 be performed by it under the lndenture or Bonds, and such default continues for a period of
thirty (30) days afterthe District has been given notice in writing of such default by the Corporation;
or (3) the District files a petition or answer seeking arrangement or reorganlzation under the
federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of the United States of America or any state
therein, or if a court of competent jurisdiction approves a petition filed with or without the consent
of the District seeking arrangement or reorganization under the federal bankruptcy laws or any
other applicable law of the United States of America or any state therein, or if under ihe provisioni
of any other law for the relief or aid of debtors any court of competent jurisdiction assumes custody
or control of the District or of the whole or any substantial part of its property.
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NOTE 6: LONG-TERM LlABlLlTlES, (continued)

Revenue Bonds, (continued)

Annual payments range from $145,000 to $210,000 as follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Principal lnterest Total

2025
2026
2027

2028
2029

2030-2033

$ 155,000
160,000
170,000
'190,000

195,000

$ 69,175
61,300
53,050
44,300
36,100
66,200

_q__$0,12!_

$ 224,175
221,300
223,050
224,300
221,100
876,200810

$ 1,660,000 $ 1,990,125

Subscription Liability

On July 2023,hhe District entered into a 36-month subscription for the use of WaterView C11
Module. An initial subscription liability was recorded in the amount of $92,056. As of June 30,
2024, the value of the subscription liability is $57,936. The District is required to make annual
fixed payments of $41 ,009. The subscription has an interest rate of 2.85o/o. The value of the right
to use asset as of June 30,2024 of $97,056 with accumulated amortization of 932,3S2 is included
with righlto-use subscription on the Capital assets note.

Debt service requirements to maturity for the subscription liability:

Year Ending
June 30,

2025
2026

Principal lnterest Total
$ 41,009 $

16,927
$ 42,659

17,409
$ 60,068

1,650
482

$ 57,936 $ 2,132
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NOTE 6: LONG-TERM LlABlLlTlES, (continued)

Financed Purchase

The District entered into an installment sale agreement in october 2023 for 9562,500 to acquire
a vactor truck. The total asset acquisition costs were $545,635, the difference of 916,865 was
remitted to the District to be used toward future principal payments as stated in the installment
sale agreement. The agreement bears an interest of 4.75o/o per annum. Principal is to be paid
annually starting October 30,2024 through October 30, 2033.

The agreement contains a provision that if an event of default occurs and is not corrected by the
District within ten days after written notice, the timing of repayment of outstanding amounts
become immediately due.

Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal lnterest Total

2025
2026
2027
2028
2029

2030-2034

$ 45,246 $
47,395
49,U6
52,OO4
54,475

313,734

_q_$?Eqq_ _$__1_2J.19_

$ 71,965
71,965
71,964
71,964
71,965

359,823
$ 719,646

26,719
24,570
22,319
19,960
17,490
46,089
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NOTE 7: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSTON PLAN

A. General lnformation about the Pension plan

Plan Description

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the public
Agency CoslSharing_Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Plan or pERF C)
administered by the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalpERS.) The plan
consists of a miscellaneous pool and a safety pool (also referred to as "risk pools"), which are
comprised of individual employer miscellaneous and safety rate plans, respectively. plan assets
may be used to pay benefits for any employer rate plan of the safety and miscellineous pools.
Accordingly, rate plans within the safety or miscellaneous pools are not separate plans under
generally accepted accounting principles. lndividual employers may sponsor more than one rate
plan in the miscellaneous or safety risk pools. The District sponsors three rate plans (all
miscellaneous). Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and District
resolution. CaIPERS issues publicly available reports that include a fuildescription of the pension
plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on
the CaIPERS' website, at www.calpers.ca.gov.

Benefits Provided

CaIPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments
and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiiries. Benefits
are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full-time employment. Members with
five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily-reduced benefits. All
members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 5 years of service. The death benefit is
one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Setflement
2W Death Benefit. The cost-of-living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the
Public Employees' Retirement Law.

The Plan operates under the provisions of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law
(PERL), the California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2Oi3 (pEpRA), and the
regulations, procedures and policies adopted by the CaIPERS Board of Administration. The plan's
authori$ to establish and amend the benefit terms are set by the PERL and pEpRA, and may be
amended by the California state legislature and in some cases require approval by the Catpgns
Board.
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NOTE 7: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSTON PLAN, (continued)

A. General Information about the pension plan, (continued)

The Plan's provisions and benefits in effect at June 30,2024 are summarized as follows

Hire Date
Benefit formula
Benefit vesting schedule
Benefit payments
Retirement age
I\4onthly benefits, as ao/o of eligible compensation
Required employee contribution rates
Required employer contribution rates

Miscellaneous
Tier I

Miscellaneous
Tier ll

Miscellaneous
PEPRA

3.0% @ 60
5 years service
monthly for life

50 and up
2.0o/olo 3.0%

8.00%
18.24%

3.0% @ 60
5 years service
monthly for life

50 and up
2.0%1o3.0%

8.00%
17.42%

2.0o/o @62
5 years service
monthly for life

52 and up
1 .0o/o lo 2.5o/o

8.25o/o

8.00%

Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law (PERL) requires that the
employer contribution rates for all public employers are determined on an annuai basis by the
actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The totaiplan
contributions are determined through CaIPERS' annual actuarial valuation process. The
actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits
9a1n9d by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued
liability. The employer is required to contribute the difference between the aciuarially determined
rate and the contribution rate of employees. Employer contribution rates may change if plan
contracts are amended. Payments made by the employer to satisfy contribution requirements that
are identified by the pension plan terms as plan member contribution requirements are classified
as plan member contributions. Employer Contributions to the Plan for the fiscal year ended June
30,2024 were $385,191. The actual employer payments of $3g5,177 made tobalpERS bythe
District during the measurement period ended June 30, 2023 differed from the District's
proportionate share of the employer's contributions of 9335,767 by $49,410, which is being
amortized over the expected average remaining service lifetime in the Public Agency Cost--
Sharing Multiple Employer Plan.

B. Net Pension Liability

The District's net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the total pension liability, less the
pension plan'sfiduciary net position. The net pension liabilityof the Plan is measured asof June
30,2023, using an annualactuarialvaluation as of June 30,2022 rolled forward to June gO,ZO23
using standard update procedures. A summary of principal assumptions and methods used to
determine the net pension liability is as follows.
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NOTE 7: DEFINED BENEFTT PENSTON PLAN, (continued)

B. Net Pension Liability (continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumpfions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability

The collective total pension liability for the June 30, 2023 measurement period was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022, wilh update procedures used to roll forward the
total pension liability to June 30, 2023. The collective total pension liability was based on the
following assumptions:

Valuation Date
Measurement Date
Actuarial Cost tt/ethod
Asset Valuation Method
Actuarial Ass um ptions :

Discount Rate
lnflation

Salary lncreases
Mortality Rate Table (1)

June30,2022
June 30, 2023
Entry Age Actuarial Cost t\4ethod
Fair Value of Assets

Post Retirement Benefit lncrease

6.90%
2.30o/o

Varies by Entry Age and Service
Derived using CaIPERS'
membership data for allfunds
The lesser of contract COLA or 2.3}o/o
until Purchasing Power Protection
Allowance floor on purchasing power
applies, 2.30% thereafter.

(1) The mortality table used was der,eloped based on Ca|PERS-specific data. The probabilities of mortality
are based on the 2021 CaIPERS Experience Study ficr the period ftom 2001 to 2019. Pre-retirement and
Post-retirement mortality rates include generational mortality impror,ement using g0% of Scale Mp-2020
published by the Society of Actuaries. For more details on this table, please refer to the CalpERS
Experience Study and Reriew of Actuarial Assumptions report ftom Nor,ember 2021 thal can be fiound on the
CaIPERS website.

Long-term Expected Rate of Return

The long{erm expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, nei of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

ln determining the long-term expected rate of return, CaIPERS took into account both short-term
and long-term market return expectations. Using historical returns of all of the funds' asset
classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the next 20 years using a
building-block approach. The expected rate of return was then adjusted to account for assum-ed
administrative expenses of 10 Basis points.
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NOTE 7: DEFINED BENEFTT PENSTON PLAN, (continued)

B. Net Pension Liahility (continued)

The expected real rates of return by asset class are as follows:

Assumed Asset
Asset Class Allocation Real Returnl'2

Global Equity - cap-weighted
Global Equity - non-cap-weighted
Private equity
Treasury
Mortgage-backed securities
lnvestment grade corporates
High yield

Emerging market debt
Private debt
Realassets
Leverage
Total

30.00%
12.00%
13.00%
5.00%
5.00%
10.00%
5.00%
5.00%
5.00%
15.00%
(5.00%)

4.54o/o

3.84%
7.28%
0.27%

0.50%
1.56%
2.27o/o

2.48%
3.57%
3.21o/o

(0.5e%)
100.00%

1An epected inflation of 2.30o/o used forthis period.
2 Figures are based on the 2021 As set Liability Ma nagem ent study.

Change of Assumptions

There were no assumption changes in2023. Effective with the June 30, 2021valuation date (June
30,2022 measurement date), the accounting discount rate was reduced fromT .15% to 6.g0%. ln
determining the long-term expected rate of return, CaIPERS took into account longterm market
return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. ln addition, demographic
assumptions and the price inflation assumption were changed in accordance with the 2021
CaIPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions. The accounting discount rate
was 7.15o/o for measurement dates June 30,2017 through June 30, 2021,7.65%o for
measurement dates June 30,2015 through June 30,2016, and750% for measurement date
June 30, 2014.
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NOTE 7: DEFINED BENEFTT PENSTON PLAN, (continued)

B. Net Pension Liability (continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for PERF C was 6.g0%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from
employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those
assumptions, the Plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long{erm expected rate ofieturn
on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
total pension liability.

Subseguent Events

There were no subsequent events that would materially affect the results presented in this
disclosure.

Pension PIan Fiduciary Net Position

lnformation about the pension plan's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources, and fiduciary net position are presented in CaIPERS' audited financial
statements, which are publicly available reports that can be obtained at CalpERS'website, at
www.calpers.ca.gov. The plan's fiduciary net position and additions to/deductions from the plan's
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis used by the pension plan, which
is the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Benefits and
refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the termi of the plan.
lnvestments are reported at fair value.

C. Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liabitity

The following table shows the District's proportionate share of the Plan's net pension liability over
the measurement period.

lncrease
Total Pension

Liability
Plan Fiduciary
Net Position

Net Pension
Liability

(c)=(a)-(b)
Balance al: 613012022 (W)
Balance at: 6/30/2023 (MD)
Net changes during 2022-23

$ 9,862,663
10,590,969

$

$ 2,575,312
8,076,807

$ 2,287,351
2,514,162

728,306 $ 501,495 $ 226,811

Valuation Date (VD), Measurement Date (MD)
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NOTE 7: DEFINED BENEFTT PENSTON PLAN, (continued)

C. Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liabitity, (continued)

The District's proportion of the net pension liability was determined by CaIPERS using the output
from the Actuarial Valuation System and the fiduciary net position, as provided in the CalpERS
Public Agency Cost-Sharing Allocation Methodology Report, which is a publicly available report
that can be obtained at CaIPERS'website, at www.calpers.ca.gov. The District's proportionate
share of the net pension liability for the miscellaneous plan as of the June 30, 2022 and 2023
measurement dates was as follows:

Miscellaneous

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liabitity to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability of the
miscellaneous plan as of the measurement date, calculated using the discount rats of 6.90
percent, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (5.90 percent) or 1 percentage-point higher (7.90 percent)
than the current rate:

Proportionate Share of NPL - June 30,2029
Proportionate Share of NPL - June 30,2024
Change - lncrease (Decrease)

Discount Rate -1%
(5 g0%)

0.04888%
0.05028o/o

0.00140o/o

Current Discount Rate Discount Rate +1%
.90o/o (7 e0%)

1,335,188Net Pension Liability $ 3,946,546 $ 2,514,162 $
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NOTE 7: DEFINED BENEFTT PENS|ON PLAN, (continued)

C. Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liabitity, (continued)

Amortization of Deferred outflows and Deferred Inftows of Resources

Under GASB 68, gains and losses related to changes in total pension liability and fiduciary net
position are recognized in pension expense systematically over time.

The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain or loss
occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions and are to be recognized in future pension expense.

The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss:

Net difference between S-year straight-line amortization
projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments

All other amounts Straight-line amortization over the expected average
remaining service lives (EARSL) of all members that
are provided with benefits (active, inactive and
retired) as of the beginning of the measurement
period

The expected average remaining service lifetime (EARSL) is calculated by dividing the totalfuture
service years by the total number of plan participants (active, inactive, and retiret) in the public
Agency Cost-Sharing Multiple-Emptoyer ptan (pERF C).

The EARSL for PERF C for the measurement period ending June 30, 2O2J is 3.8 years, which
w-as obtained by dividing the total service years of 600,538 (the sum of remaining service lifetimes
of theactive employees) by 160,073 (the total number of participants: active, inaitive, and retired)
in PERF C. lnactive employees and retirees have remaining service lifetimes equal to 0. Totai
future service is based on the members' probability of decrementing due to an event other than
receiving a cash refund.

D. Pension Expense and Deferred Outftows and Deferred tnflows of Resources Relafed to
Pensions

As of the start of the measurement period (July 1 ,2022), the District's net pension liability was
$2,287,351. For the measurement period ending June 30, 2023 (the measurement date), the
District incurred a pension expense of $571,762.
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NOTE 7: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (continued)

D. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related fo
Pensions, (continued)

As of June 30,2024, the District has deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions as follows:

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred lnflows
of Resources

Differences Between Expected and
Actual Experience

Changes of Assumptions
Difference Between Projected and

Actual lnvestment Earnings
Change in Employer's Proportion
Differences Between E m ploye/s Contributions

and Proportionate Share on Contributions
Pension Contributions Subsequent to the

lVleasurement Date
Total

FiscalYear
Ended June 30:

2025
2026
2027
2028
2029

Thereafter

$ 128,437
151,792

407,065
65,746

38,228

$ 19,924

16,642

385 191

$ 1,176,459 $ 36,566

The amounts above are net of outflows and inflows recognized in the 2022-23 measurement
period expense. Contributions subsequent to the measurement date of $385,191 reported with
deferred outflows of resourceswillbe recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
upcoming fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in future pension expense as follows:

Deferred
Outflows/(lnflows)

of Resources
$ 248,495

166,569
327,959

11,680

E. Payable to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2024, the District reported a payable of $9,787 for the outstanding amount of
contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2024.
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NOTE 8: OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Plan Description

The District has established a Retiree Healthcare Plan (HC Plan) and participates in an agent
multiple employer defined benefit retiree healthcare plan. District provides post-retirement health
care benefits through the California Public Employees' Retirement System. ln general, to be
eligible for retiree medical benefits, an employee must retire from CALPERS on or after age 50
with at least 5 years of District seruice. For employees hired prior to February 1, 2006, the
District's financial obligation is to pay 100o/o of the cost of coverage for the eligible retiree and any
eligible dependents. For employees hired on or after February 1, 2006, the District's contribution
percentage is based on the employee's years of CALPERS eligible service at retirement starting
al50o/o for employees with 10 years increasing by 5% per year of service up to 100% at 20 years
of service. The District's maximum contribution is based on this contribution percentage applied
to the average weighted premium rates established annually by CALPERS. A separate financial
report is not prepared for the HC Plan.

Employees Covered

As of the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation, the following current and former employees were
covered by the benefit terms under the HC Plan:

Active employees
lnactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Total 29

Contributions

The District pays retiree medical benefits directly to CaIPERS. For fiscal year ended June 30,
2024, the District paid $127,072 in retiree medical benefits. ln fiscal year 2008, the District
established an lrrevocable Trust with the CaIPERS' California Employer's Retiree Benefit Trust
(CERBT). The lrrevocable Trust was required to fully implement the District's direction of
prefunding the District's OPEB liability. For fiscal year June 30, 2024, the District's cash
contribution to CERBT was $130,000 in payments to the trust and the estimated implied subsidy
of $41,316 resulting in total OPEB contributions of $298,388. The District's contributions to the
OPEB plan are not based on a measure of pay.

20
I
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NorE 8: orHER POSr-EMPLOYMENT BENEF|TS (opEB), (continued)

Net OPEB liability

The District's net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30,2023, and the total OpEB liability
used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation dated June 3d,
2022, based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OpEB
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges
are combined to produce the long{erm expected rate of return by weighting the expected future
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class Target Allocation

Long-term
expected realrate

of return

Actuarial Assumptions:
Actuarial Ass um ptions :

Actuarial Cost tt/ethod
Asset Valuation lt/ethod
Discount Rate
lnflation
Salary lncreases

IVlortality Rate

Healthcare Trend Rate

TIPS
Fixed lncome
GlobalEquities
REIT's
Commodities
Total

Entry age normal cost, level o/o of pay
Fair value of assets
6.20o/o

2.50o/o

3.00o/o - Per annum
Macleod Watts Scale 2022 applied

generationally.
5.6% in 2024 decreasing to 3.9% by 2076

5%
23o/o

49%
20o/o

3o/o

-1.80%
-1.00o/o

4.40o/o

3.00%
0.80%

100o/o

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.2o/o percent. The long-term
expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total OPEB liabilig.
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NOTE 8: OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFTTS (OPEB), (continued)

Changes in the OPEB Liability

The changes in the net OPEB liability for the HC plan are as follows:

Total OPEB
Liability (a)

Plan

Fiduciary Net
Position (b)

Net OPEB
Liability

(c)= (a) - (b)
Bafance atJune 30,2023
(Measurement Date June 30,2022) $ 3,445 ,160 $ 2,382,719 $ 1,062,441

166,094
219,687

(151 ,788)
(267,471)

(10,64e)
(135,821)

Net Changes 249,960 293,379 (43,419)

Balance at June 30,2024
(Measurement Date June 30, 2023) $ 3.695 ,120 $ 2,676,098 $ 1,019,022

sensitivity of the Net 0PEB Liability to changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate, for
measurement period ended June 30, 2023:

Changes recognized for the measurement period:
Service Cost
lnterest
Net investment income
Contributions - employer
lnvestment experience
Benefit payments
Adm inistrative expenses

1% Decrease
5.20%

166,094
219,687

151,788
267,471

10,649
(135,821)

(708) 708

Current
Discount Rate

6.2Oo/o

1% lncrease
7.20o/o

Net OPEB Liability $ 1,574,776 $ 1,019,022 $ 566,272
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NOTE 8: OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB), (continued)

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend Rafes

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Authority if it were calculated using health
care cost trend rates that are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the
current rate, for measurement period ended June 30, 2023:

1% Decrease
Current Healthcare
Cost Trend Rates 1% lncrease

Net OPEB Liability $ 499,804 $ 1,019,022 $ 1,675,972

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position

CaIPERS issues a publicly available CERBT financial report that may be obtained from the
CaIPERS' website at www.calpers.ca.gov.

Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Deferred lnflows of Resources

Gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are
recognized in OPEB expense systematically over time. Amounts are first recognized in OPEB
expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred
outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and are to be recognized in future
OPEB expense.

The recognition period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss:

Net difference between projected
and actualearnings on OPEB
plan investments 5 years straight-line

All other amounts Expected average remaining service
lifetime (EARSL) (8.30 years at June 30, 2023)
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NOTE 8: OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB), (continued)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflowsllnflows of Resources Relafed to OPEB

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024,hhe District recognized OPEB expense of $325,464. For
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024,hhe District reported deferred outflows of resources related
to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred
Outflows

of Resources

Deferred
lnflows

of Resources
OPEB contributions subsequent to

measurement date
Changes of assumptions
Differences between expected

and actualexperience
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on OPEB plan investments
Total

FiscalYear
Ended June 30

$

$ $298,388
235,802

69,554

94,669

329,593

158 048
$ 761,792 $ 424,262

The $298,388 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to
the June 30,2023 measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability
during the subsequent year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to
OPEB will be recognized as expense as follows:

Deferred
Outflows/(lnflows)

of Resources
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029

Thereafter

90,149
55,290
83,762

(35,174)
(67,344)
(87,541)
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NOTE 9: NET POSITION

At J une 30 , 2024 , the components of net position consisted of the foilowing

Net investment in capital assets:
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Depreciable capital assets, net
Current portion of long-term debt
Long-term debt, less current portion

$ 9,334,579
66,230,810

(676,255)
(20,000,531)

g_sfqqfg!_
Restricted Funding Source Use

Water capacity charges and
supplemental water For the expansion of the water system
Town Sewer capacity charges For the expansion of the sewer system
Town sewer cash with fiscal agent cash held with fiscal agent for expansion

Restricted for system expansion
Nipomo Supplemental water Project For the replacemenurepair of the supplemental

water project
Total Restricted Net Position

$ 13,221,262
598,373

3,166,848
16,986,483

2,41 0,741
$ 18.997 ,224

Unrestricted Source Us
nated reserve expenses

Total Unrestricted Net Position $ 11,695,400

NOTE 10: JOINT POWERS AUTHOR|TY

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District is a
member of the Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA), an intergovernmental risk
sharing joint powers authority created to provide self-insurance for California special districts. The
purpose of the SDRMA is to arrange and administer programs of self-insured losses and to
purchase excess insurance coverage.

At June 30,2024, the District participated in the liability and property programs of the SDRMA as
follows:

General Liability: Special District Risk Management Authority, coverage number LCA SDRMA
202324. This covers $10,000,000 per occurrence.

Public Officials and Employees Errors: Special District Risk Management Authority, coverage
number LCA SDRM A202924. This covers 910,000,000 per occurrence/general aggregate.

Personal Liability Coverage for Board Members: Special District Risk Management Authority,
coverage number LCA SDRMA 202324. This covers $500,000 per occurrence/general
aggregate.
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NOTE 10: JOINT POWERS AUTHORTTY, (continued)

Employment Practices Liabilitv: Special District Risk Management Authority, coverage number
LCA SDRMA 202324. This covers $10,000,000 per wrongful employment practiceiaggregate
limits per member.

Employment Benefits Liability: Special District Risk Management Authority, coverage number
LCA S D RM A 202324. Th is covers $1 0, 000, 000 per occurrence/general ag g regate.

Employee Dishonestv Coveraqe: Special District Risk Management Authority, coverage number
EDC SDRMA202324. This policy includes a $1,000,000 Public Employees Dishonesty Blanket
Coverage.

Auto Liability: Special District Risk Management Authority, coverage number LCA SDRMA
202324. This policy covers $10,000,000 per occurrence with personal injury and property
damage.

Automgbile Phvsical Damaqe: Special District Risk Management Authority, coverage number
LCA SDRMA202324. The coverage is on fite with SDRMA.

Uninsured/Under lnsured Motorist: Special District Risk Management Authority, coverage number
UMI SDRMA202324. The coverage is on fite with SDRMA.

Trailer Coverage: District Risk Management Authority, coverage number LCA SDRM A ZOZJZ4
The coverage is on file with SDRMA.

Pfopertv Coveraqe: Special District Risk Management Authority, coverage number PPC SDRMA
202324. This policy covers the replacement cost for scheduled property, $1,000,000,000 per
occurrence. Deductible is on file with SDRMA.

Boiler and Machinerv: Special District Risk Management Authority, coverage number ppC
SDRMA 202324. This covers the replacement cost for scheduled property, $100,000,000 per
occurrence. Deductible is on file with SDRMA.

Workers Compensation Covera[e and Emplo]rer's Liability: Special District Risk Management
Authority, coverage number WCP SDRM A 202324. This coverage is statutory per occurrence,
respectively for workers' compensation and $5,000,000 for employers' liability coverage.

Settled claims have not exceeded any of the coverages in any of the last three fiscal years. There
were no reductions in insurance coverage in fiscal year 2024. Liabilities are recorded when it is
probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated
net of the respective insurance coverage. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been
incurred but not reported (IBNR). There were no IBNR claims payable as of June 30,2024.
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NOTE 11: CONTINGENCIES

Sanfa Maria Valley Water Conseruation District v. City of Santa Maria, ef a/., Santa Clara County
Superior Court, Case No. CV 770214("Santa Maria Groundwater Adjudication").

This case relates to the District's right to produce water from the Santa Maria groundwater
basin. The District is a defendant and cross-defendant in the case and has fitel ns own cross-
complaint.
lssues brought forth in the case include claimed priority to the right to produce water from the
subject water basin, rights to store and produce native and imported water in and from the
basin, and a call for a court-ordered management plan (physical solution) to manage storage in
and water production from the basin while preserving the basin as a resource.

There are more than 1,500 involved parties in the action. The litigation does not involve claims
for current or past liability, but it may result in a rise in the cost oiwater production and
distribution to District customers or a decline in the amount of water available in areas serviced
by the District. A number of parties, including the District, have stipulated to a setilement in the
case. Finaljudgement has now been entered, and two published decisions have been issued by
the Court of Appeal related to the final judgment and its interpretation: (1) City of Santa Maria v.
Adam (2012) 211 Cal.App.4th 266; and (2) City of Santa Maria v. Adam (201-O) 218 Cat.App.4th
504. The trial court continues to have jurisdiction over this matter. There currenfly is no
scheduled court appearance in this matter other than an October 16, 2OZ4 hearing on the
court's acceptance of annual water reports for the three designated managementlreas (i.e.,
santa Maria Valley, Nipomo Mesa, and Northern cities) within the basin.

On April 15 & 16,2019, certain landowners filed the following complaints: 1) Koch California
Ltd., et al. v. City of Santa Maria, et al. (Case No. 19-CV-0227), pending in'San Luis Obispo
County Superior Court; 2) JC & Elsie Teixeira Family Limited Partnership v-. City of Santa Maria,
et al. (Case No. 19-CV-0230), in San Luis Obispo County Superior Court; 3) Ji & Elsie Teixeira
Family Limited Partners_hipv. Cityof Santa Maria, etal. (Case No. 1g-CV-02086), pending in
Santa Barbara County Superior Court; and Adam L. Kieran, et al., v. City of Santa Maria, e[al.
(Case No. 19CV02091), in Santa Barbara County Superior Court. The District, and all other
public purveyors in the Santa Maria Groundwater Adjudication, were named defendants. The
public purveyor defendants filed a petition to request that the Judicial Council determine that
these fourcomplaints be coordinated with the Santa Maria Groundwater Litigation in Santa Clara
County Superior Court. That petition was granted, and these four actions have now been stayed
pending transfer to the Santa Clara County Superior Court. Transfer of these quiet tifle actions
is still pending.

Nipomo Action Committee, et al. v. County of San Luis Obispo, et al., San Lurs Obispo Superior
Court Case No. 24CV-0351.

This case is a CEQA challenge to San Luis Obispo County's approval of a development project,
the Dana Reserve, in the Nipomo area. The County certified the EIR and approved the pr6jeit on
April 24, 2024. The approval contemplates that the Nipomo Community Services Distiicf would
provide water and wastewater service to the project through an annexation.
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NOTE1l: CONTINGENCTES(continued)

Nipomo Action Committee, et al. v. County of San Luis Obispo, et al., San Lurs Obispo Superior
Court Case No. 24CV-0357. (continued)

On August 28,2024 the District approved an annexation agreement with the developer, a
property tax sharing agreement with San Luis Obispo County, and a Plan for Service for
consideration by the San Luis Obispo Ccounty LocalAgency Formation Commission
('SLOLAFCo"). SLOLAFCo will consider the developer's application to annex the subject
property into the District on November 14,2024. As a part of the annexation agreement, the
developer has agreed to indemnifo and defend the District in all proceedings related to the
project.

Petitioners, Nipomo Action Committee and California Native Plant Society, filed their petition
challenging the project on May 28,2024. Petitioners allege noncompliance with CEQA as well
as the Government Code related to specific plan requirements, and seek mandamus relief
reversing the County's project approval. On August 26,2024, Petitioners amended their petition
and alleged a cause of action for declaratory relief directly against the District, seeking an order
from the Court that the District was legally prohibited from providing service to the prolect.
However, on September 30, 2024, after the District threatened to demur to the declaratory relief
cause of action, Petitioners dismissed that cause of action and are proceeding only on their
original challenges to the project.

At present, Petitioners do not seek any relief directly against the District and instead named the
District as a real party in interest "out of an abundance of caution." The Court has tentatively
scheduled the hearing on Petitioners' challenges to the project for February 6,2025. The District
does not anticipate taking an active role in defending the County's CEQA proceedings.
However, if Petitioners raise issues with the District's authority, or if they challenge LAFCO's
final approval of the annexation, the District will likely be required to actively respbnd to
Petitioners' claims.

The District, as well as the County and developer, anticipated legal challenges to the project, and
have proceeded accordingly. The District denies Petitioners' general allegation that the District is
prohibited from supplying water to the project.

NOTE 12: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On October 1,2024, the District issued the Water Revenue Certificates of Participation Series
2024 bonds of $13,390,000 which refunded the Water Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2013A
of $1,505,000 and Revenue Certificates of Participation Series 2013 bonds of $8,035,000 and
issued an additional $3,850,000 to finance Tefft Street and Foothill Road Water Storage Tank
project.
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Nip omo C ommunity S erztices District

Required Supplementary lnformation
Schedule of District's Proportionate Share of the Plan's Net Pension Liability

and Related Ratios as of the Measurement Date
Last Ten Years

Measurement
Date

Employer's
Proportion of
the Collective
Net Pension

Liabilityl

Employer's
Proportionate
Share of the

Collective Net
Pension
Liability

$ 1,075,480
1,174,145
1,480,964
1,686,681
1,607,847
1,727,302
1,894.757

955,076
2,287,351
2,514j62

Covered

Employer's
Proportionate
Share of the

Collective Net
Pension

Liability as a
Percentage of
the Covered

Payroll

Pension's
Plans

Fiduciary Net
Position as a

Percentage of
the Total
Pension
Liability

6t30t2014
6t30t2015
6t30t2016
6130t2017
6t30t2018
6/30/2019
6t30t2020
6130t2021
6t30t2022
6t30t2023

0.01728o/o

0.01711o/o

0.01712o/o

0.O1701o/o

0.01669%
0.01686%
0.01741o/o

0.05030%
0.04889%
0.50279o/o

$ 850,732
990,477

1,110,264
1 ,1 53,706
1,120,809
1,149,787
1,329,670
1,428,771
1,537,208
1,674,080

126.42o/o

118.54o/o

133.39%
146.20o/o

143.45o/o

150.23o/o

142.50o/o

66.85%
148.80o/o

150.18o/o

8O.12o/o

79.61o/o

75.85o/o

75.19o/o

77.49o/o

77.53o/o

77.08o/o

89.23o/o

76.81o/o

76.260/o

1 Proportion of the collectire net pension liability represents the plan's proportion of PERF C, which includes both the
Miscellaneous and Safety Risk pools excluding the 1959 Survirors Risk pool.
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Nipomo Community Seraices District

Required Supplementary lnformation
Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions
Last Ten Years

Lasf 10 Years

FiscalYear

Actuarially
Determined
Contribution

Contributions
in Relation to
the Actuarially
Determined
Contribution

Contribution
Deficiency Covered

Payroll

Contributions
asa

Percentage of
Covered
Payroll
19.19o/o

19.35%
20.28Yo

21.860/o

20.14o/o

20.680/0

22.45%
23.21%
23.01o/o

20.40o/o

(Excess
6t30t2015
6t30t2016
6t30t2017
6t30t2018
6t30t2019
6t30t2020
6t30t2021
6t30t2022
6130t2023
6t30t2024

$ 190,106 $
214,785
233,979
245,052
231,550
275,007
320,704
356,716
385,177
385,1 91

(1e0,106) $
(214,785)
(233,e7e)
(245,052)
(231,550)
(275,007)
(320,704)
(356,716)
(385,177)
(385,1e1)

$ 990,447
1,110,264
1,153,706
1,120,809
1,149,787
1,329,670
1,428,771
1,537,208
1,674,080
1,887,743

,Vofes fo Schedule:

Change in Benefit Terms: Changes in Benefit Terms: There were no changes to benefit terms that applied to
all members of the Public Agency Pool. Additionally, the figures abore do not include any liability impact
that may hare resulted ftom Golden Handshakes that occurred after the June 30, 202'l raluation date, unless
the liability impact is deemed to be material to the public Agency pool.

Changes in Assumptions: Eflectire with the June 30, 2021 wluation date (2022 measurement date), the
accounting discount rate was reduced from 7.15o/o to 6.90%. ln determining the long-term expected rate of
return, CaIPERS took into account long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension
fund cash flows. Projected returns for all asset classes are estimated, combined with risk estimates, and are
used to project compound (geometric) returns orer the long term. The discount rate used to discount
liabilities was informed by the long-term projected portfolio return. ln addition, demographic assumptions and
the inflation rate assumption were changed in accordance with the 2021 CaIPERS Experience Study and
Review of Actuarial Assumptions.There were no assumption changes for 2021. For 2020, the plan adopted a
new amortization policy effectile with the 2019 actuarial wluation. The new amortization policy shortens the
period owr which actuarial gains and losses are amortized fom 30 years to 20 years with the payments
computed as a lerel dollar amount. ln addition, the new policy does not utilize a file-year ramp-up and ramp-
down on UAL bases attributable to assumption changes and non-inr,estment gains/losses. The new policy
also does not utilize a fire-year ramp-down on inrestment gainsilosses. These changes apply only to new
UAL bases established on or after June 30, 20'19. There were no changes in assumptions in 2019. ln 20.1g,
demographic assumptions and inflation rate were changed in accordance to the CalpERS Experience Study
and Review of Actuadal Assumptions December 2017. There were no changes in the discount rate in 2019. ln
2017,the accounting discount ratewas reduced ftom 7.65 percent to 7. 15 percent. ln 2016, there were no
changes in the discount rate. ln 2015, amounts reported reflect an adjustment of the discount rate from 7.5
percent (net of administratile expense) to 7.65 percent (without a reduction for pension plan administratirc
expense). ln 2014, amounts reported were based on the 7.5 percent discount rate.
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N ip omo C ommunity S entices District

Required Supplementary I nformation
Schedule of Ghanges in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Last Ten Years*

Measurement Date
Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost
lnterest
Plan experience differences
Changes in assumptions
Changes in benefit terms
Benefit payments
Net change in Total OPEB Liability
Total OPEB Liability - beginning
Total OPEB Liability - ending (a)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Conkibution - employer
Net investment income
Benefit payments
Administrative expense
Other Expense (one{ime)
lnvestment experience
Net change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - beginning
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - ending (b)

Net OPEB Liability - endins (a) - (b)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability

Covered-em ployee payroll

Net OPEB |iability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

6t30t2017 6t30t2018 6/30/201 9

$ $ $66,148
125,817

68,132
133,867
42,839

552,064

124,610
180,785

il,913

rrzs,oozt(136,301) (134,076)

55,664

2,002,727
662,826

2,058,391
241,241

2,721,217
2,058,391 2,721,2',t7 2,962,458

223,671
131,036

(136,301)
(1,0e2)

221,46
114j32

(134,076)
(770)

(1,867)

216,437
1M,331

(129,067)
(353)

217,314
1,192,839

198,865
1,410,153
1,609,018

191,348
1,609,018

1,410,153 1,800,366

$ 048,238 $ 1,112,199 $ 1,162,092

68.51olo

$ 1,288,325 $

50.32o/o

59.13olo

't,213,514 $

91.65%

60.77o/o

1,176,634

98.760/o

Notes to schedule:
. Historical information is required only for measurement period for which GASB 75 is applicable. Future years' information will

be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available.

Fiscal Year 2017-18 was the first year of implementation.

Contributions are not based on a measure of pay, therefore covered-employee payroll is used in the schedule.
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6130t2020 6t30t2021 6t30t2022 6t30t2023

$ 14r''932 $
198,010
122,387
187,866

143,574 $
232,050

147,881 $
248,258

(434,227)
(124,723)

166,094
219,687

(122,132\ (1U,17s) (1

531,063 241,445
2,962,458 3,493,521

26,995) (135,821)
(289,806)

3,734,966
249,960

3,u145,160

3,493,521 3,734,966 3,445,160 3,695,120

223j32
120,277

(122,132)
(e0o)

235,179
131,333

(1U,179)
(760)

2U,995
174,516

(126,ee5)
(676)

267,471
151,788

(135,821)
(708)

(50,361) 419,241 17) 10 649
170,016

1,800,366
1,970,382

650,814
1,970,382

(238,477) 293,379
2.382,719
2,676,098

2,621 196

2,621,196 2,382,719

_g__1,5?9,.1-99_ $ 1,113,770 $ 1,062,441 $ 1,019,022

56.40%

$ 1,419,376 $

107.31o/o

70.18o/o

1,515,349 $

73.50o/o

69.160/o

1,582,861 $

67.12o/o

72.42%

1,730,697

58.88%
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Nip omo Community Seraices District

Required Supplementary lnformation
Schedule of OPEB Contributions
Last Ten Years*

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

Actuarially determined contributions (ADC)
Contributions in relation to the ADC

Conkibution defi ciency/(excess)

Covered-employee payroll
Contribution as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

Notesto schedule
Valuation Date
Methods and assumptions used to determine contributions
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Amortization period

Asset \aluation method
lnflation

Healthcare cost trend rates

Salary increases
ln\estment rate of retum
Retirement Rates
Mortality rates

$ (e0,630) $ 24,308 $

2018 2019 2020

$ 110,926 $
(201,556)

215,870 $
(1e1,562)

222,139
(223,132)

(ee3)

$ 1,213,s14 $
16.610

1,176,634 $
16.28o/o

1,419,376
15.72o/o

6% to 5% step 1olo 7o/o lo 5o/o step 0.5olo

6t30t2017

Entry age normal

30 years

Fair Value
3.00o/o

3.OOo/o

6.50o/o

Varies by age
Pre-Retirement:

RP-2014 Employee
Mortality;

Post-Retirement:
RP-2014 Healthy

Annuitant; no

mortality
improrement

assumed

6t30t2018

Entry age normal
2.5% escalation

20 years

Fair Value
2.50o/o

3.25o/o

6.50%
CaIPERS 2017

Exp€rience
Assumptions;

Mortality projection

using Macleod
Watts Scale 2018

generationally

No changes in assumptions or methods since the pnor Measurement Date.

* Historical information is required only for measurement period for which GASB 75 is applicable. Future years' information will be
displayed up to 10 years as information becomes a\ailable.

Contributions are fixed and not based on a measure of pay, therefore co\€red-employee payroll is used in the schedule.

Fiscal Year 2017-18 was the first year of implementation.
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2021 2022 2023 2024

$ 228,054 $
(235,179',)

281,8s3 $
(254,995)

290,309 $
Q67.471',t

272,152

$ (7,12s) $ 26,858 $ 22,838 $ (26,236\

$ 1,515,349 $
15.520/o

1,582,861 $
16.11o/o

1,730,697 $
15.45o/o

1,925,452
15.50%

613012020

Entry age normal
2.5olo escalatlon

18 years

Fair Value
2.500/o

5.8o/o in 2O21

scaling down to 4%
by 2076
3.000/o

6.507o

Mortality projection

using
MacLeod Watts

Scale
2020 generationally

6t30t2022

Entry age normal
2.5% escalation

16 years
Fair Value

2.5Oo/o

5.60/o in 2024,
decreasing to 3.9olo

w 2076
3.00%
6.5070

Mortality projection
using

Macleod Watts
Scale

2022 generationally
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N ip omo C ommunity Sentices District

Gombining Schedule of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2024

Business The Activities - Enterorise Funds
Town Blacklake

Administration Water Sew€r SeuJer
Blacklake
Lighting

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equjvalents
lnveslments
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable - other
Unbilled utililies receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Accrued franchise fees
Due from County
Due from other funds
Contract receivable, current portion

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Interfund loan receivable
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricled cash - funded replacement
Cash with fiscal agent
Deposits and other assets
Contract receivable, less current portion
Capital assets:

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Depreciable capital assets, net

Tolal noncurrent assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOV\IS OF RESOURCES
OPEB related
Pension related

Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current liabillties:

Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Deposits and retentions
Accrued liabililies
Current portion of long{erm liabilities

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
lnterfund loan payable
Net OPEB liability
Net pension liability
Long-term liabiliiies, less curent portion

Total noncurrent liabililies

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOI/VS OF RESOURCES
OPEB related
Pension related

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for system expansion
Restricted for system replacement
unrestricted (def ic it)

80,000
14,373 283

31S
- 203,090 -

2,000 15,842,149 3,418,104 1,989,387 41,726

24,238
37.516

2U
38,734

6,595,202

3,166,848
5,373

1,706,252 785,436 6,768,465

86,823 62,727,031 32,646,405 9,861,937 41,726

41,934 38,544,460 25,276,017 1,079,847
84.823 46,884,882 29,228,301 7,872.550

$ $10,303,849
4,062,751

1 13,926

773,000
220,958

$ 2,246,068
885,553
42,556

218,000
25,927

$ 1,353,404
533,590

8,020

43,422
67,O57

1't0,479

$ 29,495
1',t,629

2,000

57,135 503,545 157,690
88,235 777,640 243,527
145,370 1 ,281 ,185 401,217

31,498
145,765
189,093
21,588
20,676

408,620

142,961 223,307 27,536 2,814
561,256

'14,500

169,156 65,148 5,352
268,041 332,822 3,102

1,155,914 621,277 35,990 2,814

76,427
188,562

't,570
266,559

2,742
34,56.1

675,179 11,384,254 11,866,344 237 ,617 27,052

31,819

ura,ira "',0,r", ,u,ouu 
24'2-38

1,661,861 520,432 143,307
7,892,906 10,513,698 _ 235

fi,iia,gao 11,24srrr zo1,62, u,zsl

280,438 87,822 24,183
24,170 7,569 2,085

304,608 95,391 26,268

41,9U 32,156,504 15,233,843
13,221,262 3.765.221

7,848,312

(519,481) 6,941,588 2,086,823 1,860,219 14,674

$ (477,547) $s2,319,354 $21,085,887 $ 9,708,531 $ 14,674Total net position
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Business Funds
Solid Landscape Property
Waste Drainage Malntenance Taxes Water Ellminations Total

$ 297,114 $
1'17j32

$ 579,295
228,398

5,288

26,670

36,199
't4,284

'15,241

6,009

149

$ $

276,147

$14,860,665
5,859,346

440,649
2,000

1 ,071,000
2703#

6,320
29,'t00

164,575
22,704,110

$

3,O27

6,320
1,393

450

7't8

(24,238)

1,959,024
37,516

1,959,024
3,167,082

50,086
6,595,202

-74,426-_9,334,579

424,986 51,651 21,399 2,208,608 2,796,427 (788,584) 110,078,409

761,792
1,176,459
1,938,251

5,708 - 728,361 - 1,162,832
- 57,32s (7U,346)

- 203,593
24,350 286,980

155,000
179,350 785,686 (764,346) 2,433,046

1,386

7,094 - u7

561,256 (7il,346)

42:986 51.651 ,1399 839F51 83?fffi (764p46)

- (24,238)

5,979

u7

7,094 u7 1,779,316 785,686 (788,s84) 25,s74,605

424,262
36,566

460,828

(391,990)

1,019,022
2.514.162

20,008,375
23,54'1,559

54,888,603
16,986,483
2,010,741

1 1,695,400

2,O10,741
417 ,892 51,651 20,752 821 ,282

$417,892$51,6s1 $20,752$429,292$2,910,741 $_$85,581,227
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Nipomo Community Seraices District

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Business TvDe Activities - Ente rprise Funds

Water
Town
Seuer

Blacklake
Seurer

Blacklake
Lighting

Operating revenues
Charges for services
Charges for services-purveyor
Charges for services-purveyor reim bursements
Other operating revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Purchased water
Purchased water related expenses
Pu rchased water-purveyors
Personnel
Contractual services
LJtilities

Repairs and maintenance
Other supplies and expenses
lnsurance
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
lnterest income
Property taxes
Cell site rental income
Gain on disposal of capital assets
Other revenue-purveyors
lnterest expense

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

lncome (loss) before contributions
and transfers

Capital contributions received
Transfers in

Transfer out
Total contributions and transfers

Change in net position

Total net position (deficit) - beginning

Total net position (deficit) - ending

$ 7,255,575 $ 2,589,598 $ 957,563 $ 49,573

Administration

$

53,522 328,295 (1,309)

53,522 7,583,870 2,588,289 957,563 49,573

1,869,685

346,893

327,729 2,124,368
63,403 134,706
26,972 428,637
27,285 274,836

1 10,559 1 ,136,487
64,085 196,068
23,361 1,321,767

6433% ?,8nA4?

211,600
3,582 72

74,112 31,724
37,008 1,302

154,349 467
10,306 115

102,556
593,513 33,680

814,935
I 6,1 04

273,161
219,582
431,524
55,743

899,587
2,710,636

(589,872) (249,577) (122,U7) 364,050 15,893

1,176,482 296,428 82,956 1,562

3,731
5,410

9,141

21,142
8,032
4,752

(376,823)
833,585

2,678 1,460

(322,360)
(23,254) U,416 1,288

(580,731)

u1,258

u1,258

(39,473)

(438,074)

_&__wl,u7r

584,008

418
527,900

(388,1 31)

140,187

724,195

51 ,595,1 59

_$9?,319!91_

(145,601 )

23,130

(1 09,970)
(86,840)

(232,441)

21,318,328

_$4.agg.qqz-

448,466 17,181

4,529,627

(19,407) (2,000)

4,510,220 (2,000)

4,958,686 15,181

4,749,845 (507)

_$_949J31_ _9___:!,67!_
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Business Tvoe Activities - Enterorise Funds
Solid

Waste
Landscape

Drainage Maintenance
Property
Taxes

Supplemental
Water Eliminations Total

$

395,951
2,000

398,046

$

430

4,021

5,146

9,597

866

262,277 14,700
262,277 14,700

a

2,803,969

502,979

- ,,*u,*n

- 119,751
_ 22,635

2,398 127,613
- 26,114

34,538

36,936 3,100,082

657 485
3.306.948 (2,315,240) 12,501,502

- 1,869,685
(149,440) 197,453

(1,869,687) 934,282
- 3,478,632
_ 218,392

(119,751) 838,627
(22,635) 560,013

(127,613) 2,236,881
(26,114) 328,317

(2,315,240) 13,044,091

$ - $10,852,309
(1,869,687) 934,282
(445,553) 57,426

1,687,206
91 1,557

24,873
17,580

4,752

$ $

OR

(1 35,769)

22,550

(20,250)

(20,250\

(1 33,469)

551,361

$ 417,892

(1 0,1 91 )
(10,191)

17,058

34,593

_$__!1f9!

5,969

(1,500)

(1,500)

4,469

16,283

s___nlv_

34,307
886,874

(517,709)
(s17,709)

303,401

1 25,891

$ 429,292

2,566

24,683
69,489

22,550 27,249

(113,219) 27,249

(63,1 35) (762,592)
858,046 69,489 1,883,376

821,110 276,355 - 1,340,787

- 4,553,175
- (1,069,1s8)

4,553,175

276,355 - 5,893,962

1,734,386

_$_2,u9M_ _$__-________:_ $85,581,227
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N ip omo C ommunity S eraices D istrict

Gombining Schedule of Other Supplies and Expenses
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Business Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Town
Sewer

Blackla ke
Sewer

Blacklake
Lighting

Other supplies and expenses
Bank charges and fees
Bond administration
Chemicals
Computer expenses
Conservation program
Credit card fees
Dues and subscriptions
Education and training
Fuel
Lab testing
LAFCO funding
Landscape and janitorial

Landscape mainlenance
lleters
Miscellaneous
NCSD labor charges
NCSD overhead charges
Newsletters and mailers
Office supplies
Operating supplies
Outside services
Permits and operating fees
Postage
Property taxes
Public notices
Safety program
Solid waste program
Telephone
Travel and mileage
Uniforms

Adminisiration Water

$ tzz s $ o o

I,

28,712

2,340

50,408

1 58,293

11,262

232

41,703

8,461

53,392

66,386

1 3,083

223,066

12,203

308,71 1

125,414

6,540

21,608

1,970

406

8,058

6,596

1,176

14,456

2,550

34,352

45,502

6,094

20,861

17,797

43,095

3,707

205

3,458

54,350

163,818

1 5,996

7.'135

115

2,996

1,869

1,530

5,097

31,861

11.744

969

3,867

9,708

43,866

654

191

Jb

610

1 0,803

15,982

14,595

3,848

20

1,520

1,112

270

594

550

32,223

4,361

1,597

241

4,652

2,400

1,967

252

2,199
'! 8,689

997

467

2,693

Total other supplies and expenses $ 110,559 $ 1,136,487 $ 431,524 $ 154,349 $ 467
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Business Tvoe Activities - Enterprise Funds
Solid
Waste

Landscape
Maintenance

$

4,677

157

395,794

469

$ 39s,9s1 $ 5,146 $ 2,398 $ 127,613 $ (127,613) $ 2,236,881

Property
Taxes

Supplemental
Water

4,996

280

64,959
38,624

Eliminations Total

$ $$ o

(4,ee6)

(280)

(64,9s9)

(38,624)

(4s)

(17,34e)
(1,360)

122

7,288
1 16,621

244,251
11,262

232

52,360

42,739
80,897

153,347

32,223

21 ,805
4,677

223,066
2,785

$

2,398

45
17,349

1 .360

1,205
20,923

373,864
307,614

37,131

34,558

1,970
1,886

12,574

395,794
11,776

21,665
22,246
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Nipomo Community Services District's (the District) annual comprehensive
financial report presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information
in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information say about
the District's overall financial health.

Table of Contents Page

FinancialTrends
Ihese schedu/es contain trend information to help the reader understand
how the District's financial performance and well-being have changed
over time.

Revenue Capacity
Ihese schedules contain information to help the reader assess fhe
District's two most significant revenue sources, water and sewer sales.

Debt Capacity
Ihese schedules present information to help the reader assess fhe
affordability of the District's current levels of outstanding debt and the
District's ability fo issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic lnformation
These schedu/es offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the District's financial
activities take place.

Operating lnformation
Ihese schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the
reader understand how the information in the District's financial repoft
relates to the seryices the District provides and the activities it performs.

64-65

67-76

77-81

82-85

B6-BB
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Nipomo Community Seraices District

Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal vear ended June 30,
2015

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets $ 41,378,553

Restricted 9,817,048

Unrestricted 6,721,899

Total Net Position $ 57,9'17,500 $ 65,203,266 _$_9q.a9q.zg_ $ 68.u3jil $ 70,937,436

2016 2017 2018 2019

$ 42,717,685

11,619,723

$ 44,744,193

10,241,070

1 1 ,615,313

$ 44,662,68s

12,079,117

11,601,352

$ 44,743,341

13,534,450

12,659,645

Fiscal Vear ended June 30.
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Position $ 73,837,603 $

$ 47,607,041

'11,180,805

15,049,757

$ 49,321,146

13,127,214

11,511,190

$ 47,205,935

16,171,832

$ 49,117,407

18,146,458

12,423,400

$ s,888,603

't8,997,224

11,695,400

$ 75,722,168 $ 79,687,265 $ 8s,581 ,227

Source: Nipomo Community Services District
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N ip omo C ommunity S eraices District

Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Ended June 30.
2015 2016 2017 2018OPERATING REVENUES:

Water
Wastewater
Other

Total Operating Revenues

Non-Operating Revenues
lnterest income
Property taxes
Other

Total Non-Operating Revenues

Total Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Purchased water
Purchased water related expenses
Purchased water - purveyors
Personnel
Contractual services
Utilities
Repairs & maintenance
Other supplies & expenses
lnsurance
Depreciation & amortization

Total Operating Expenses

Total Non-Operating Expenses

Total Expenses

lncome (Loss) Before Contributions
Capital Contributions received
Capital Contributions paid

$ 3,361,276 $
2,311,400

650,810

$ 4,554,380 $
2,436,782

682 798

494,905
621,662
478.014

6,323,486 7..159.316 7,673,960 8.417.063

4,OUj72
2,337,597

767,547

5,166,145
2,549,U8

701.370

659,2'15
660,920

1,428,942
2,749,O77

140

64,580
549,693

51 u4

447,364
586,899
780 723

6,814,986 1,594,5817

6,989,103 13.974,302 9.268 ,541 11

872,439 1,O01,222

1,774,347
272,9U
604,890
188,512

1,294,3il
76,O12

129,321
1,7U,935

350,413
573,298
370,U6

1,O52jU
79.814

500,313
1,891,517

372,178
56'1,855
227,987

1,041,058
73,897

1,039,190
101,263
519,284

2,3'16,183
397,665
555,494
223,680

1,065,409
84,487

1.41 0,550 1.81 3,745 1 1.937 ,3&
5.621,629 7 7.51 6,723 I 9

4.1 86,961 883,201 885 071 858,416

7 8.401 ,794 9.098 ,435

(2,819,487)
53,464

6,084,456
668,838

866,747
530,563

2,067,705
450,351

change in Net Position _g__Glqg..q?gl _$_gzgg?g1_ _q__]_,ggzflq _q__?EEpgq

Source: Nipomo Community Services District
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

$ 5,189,177
2,622,885

744 123

$ 5,940,876 $
2,780,302

888 1U

6,531,278 $
2,910,620
1

6,756,275 $
3,142,840
1,118,324

7,457,234 $
3,367,204

246 977

7,583,870
3,545,852
1,371,780

8,556,185 9,609,312 1 11,017,439 12.071,415 12,501,502

895,090
702,329

95,162

838,831
737,8U
135,410

536,130
784,833
795,882

498,800
803,154
(16,475)

750,473
868,775
176,941

1,687,206
911,557
47 205

1,692,581 1,712,075 2.11 6,845 1,285,479 1 ,796,189 2,64s,968

10,248,766 11,321,387 1 12,302,918 13,867,604 15,147,470

1,O77,827
101,847
538,591

2,126,678
322,O78
559,784
169,552

1,182,592
99,549

1,923.642

1,206,101
116,544
602,690

2,718,989
276,448
606,967
259,684

1,310,249
112,448

1,981,829

1,517 ,735
128,876
758,413

2,928,488
318,891
613,831
304,784

1,531,425
161,330

1,597,857
15't,981
798,448

2,782,757
297,322
621,612
290,748

1,653,969
215,182

2,169,646

1,727,795
173,191
863,379

3,O48,612
297,930
714,902
280,751

1,775,669
266,512

2,265,487

1,869,685
197,453
934,282

3,478,632
218,392
838,627
560,013

2,236,881
328,317

2.064,445 2,381 ,809
8 102 140 9,191,949 10,328,218 10,579,522 11,414,228 13, 044,O91

843,O14 826 085 808,68s 818,398 766,939 762,592

8,945,154 1 0,018,034 1 1 ,136,903 11 ,397 ,920 12

1,303,612
1,290,670

1,303,353
1,596,814

1,502,386
507,O28

(1,000,000)

904,998
857,620

181 167

1,686,437
2,278,660

1,U0,787
4,553,175

$ 2594,282 $ 2,900,167 $ 1 14 $ 1,762,618 $ 3,965,097 $ 5,893,962
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Nip omo C ommunity S entices District

Active Water Customers By Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Ended June 30.
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Single Family

Yo

Multi-Family

%

Commercial

o/o

lrrigation

%

Agriculture

oh

3,592

84o/o

497

12%

99

2o/o

96

2%

1

0%

3,603

84o/o

497

12%

102

2o/o

97

2%

1

0o/o

3,669

85o/o

441

10%

101

2o/o

97

2o/o

I

3,685

85o/o

439

10o/o

103

2o/o

103

2o/o

1

3,703

85%

444

10o/o

101

2o/o

94

2o/o

1

3,726

85Yo

462

11o/o

103

2o/o

99

2%
,|

3,809

85%

463

11%

108

2o/o

104

2o/o

1

3,819

85o/o

470

11%

106

2o/o

105

2o/o

1

3,819

85%

471

11o/o

109

2o/o

109

2o/o

1

3,823

85o/o

471

11o/o

109

2o/o

109

2o/o

1

0o/o 0o/o 0o/o Oo/o \Yo 0% Oo/o Oo/o

Total 4,285 4,300 4,309 4,331 4,343 4,391 4,485 4,501 4,509 4,512

Total % 1OO% 100o/o 100o/o 100o/o 100% 100o/o 100% 100o/o 1Q0Yo 1o0o/o

Source: Nipomo Community Services District
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Nipomo Community Seruices District

Water Availability Charges
Last Ten FiscalYears

Fiscal Year Ended June 30.
2015 2016 2017 201A 2019 20 2021 2022" 2O2s 2024

Moter Size
1 inch and Less
1 ll2lnch
2lnch
3lnch
4lnch
6 hch
S lnch

$ 44.92
123.94

193.48

350.88
572.31

1,12A.A5
't,777.1'l

$ 42.51

51.49

67.40

152.51

197.75

335.12

492.11

$ 46.s2
55.55

72.OA

163.70

210.55

349.88

509.09

$ 51.59

60.87

74.43

178.85

228.44

372.90

538.01

$ 53.70

75.76
'tm.42

223.U
312.99

631.28

995.04

$ 30.36

42.42
59.32

124.U
174.18

348.53

547.80

$ 33.86

47.O3

65.60
134.20

192.58

383.17
601.00

s 37.62

s1.98

72.U
152.66

212.22

420.33

658.16

$ 41.57
'114.43

178.42

322.A6

525.7A

1,036.08

1,628.U

44.92

'123.94.

193.48

350.88

572.31

1,128.85
'l,777.11

$

Supplomontal wator
Meter Size

1 inch and Less

1112lnch
2lnch
3lnch
4lnch
6lnch

13.20

39.60
63.36

1 18.80

198.00

396.00

'13.20 *

39.60 *

63.36 .
118.80 .
'r98.00 -

396.00 .

Source: Nipomo Communlty SeMces District
*Combined into one fixed charged. Effejctive 1i,112017**January 2022, Nipomo community seMces District went fiom bi-monthly biiling to monthty billing
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Nipomo Community Sentices District

Bi-Monthly Water Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2015 2016 2017 2018" 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

$- $- $- $4.97 $5.45 $5.95 $6.21 $6.68 $7.21 $7.80Uniform Rate

Single Family & Multi-Family
Tier I

Tier ll

Tier lll

Tier lV
Commercial & krigation

Tier I

Tier ll

2.16
2.69
3.78
6.47

2.37
2.95

4.14
7.08

2.37
2.95
4.'t4
7.08

2.69
3.78

2.95
4.14

2.95
4.14

Agriculture and all Other 3.11 3.41 3.41

Supplemental Water 0.77 1.003

*Uniform rate effective 121112017

Source: Nipomo Community Services District
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Nipomo Community Seraices District

Water Capacity Gharges
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Motor Size

1 inch and Less
Supplemental Water

1llzlnch
Supplemental Water

2lnch
Supplemental Water

3lnch
Supplemental Water

4lnch
Supplemental Water

6lnch
Supplemental Water

I 2,921 $ 2,976 $ 3,076
7,570 7.711 7,971

$ 3,188 $ 3,284 $ 3,349 $ 3,405 $ 3,575 $ 3,878 $ 3,962
4, 2 8,510 8,678 8,823 9,265 '10,049 10,268

8,764
22,710

'14,O22

36,336

26,291
68,1 30

43,819
1 1 3,550

87,638
227.100

8,928
23jU

14,2U
37,0't5

26,782
69,403

44,638
115,671

49,275
231,y2

9,228
23,913

14,765
34,261

27,6U
71.740

46,141
1'19,566

92,281
239,132

9,566
24,787

'15,305

39,660

28,696
74,362

47,827
'123,936

95,654
247,472

9,853
25,531

15,764
40,850

49,263
127,657

98,526
255.3'14

'to,u7
26,Oy

16,075
41,655

30,140
78,'103

50,2U
't30,'t72

100,467
260,U4

10,215
26,470

16,U4
42,352

30,644
79,411

51,O74
132,351

102,149
26/.,703

't0,727
27,796

17,162
44,474

32,179
83,389

53,633
138,982

107,266
277,%3

1't,6U
30,'147

18,164
44,235

34,901
90,441

58,169
150,735

1 16,338
301,471

11 ,888
30,805

19,020
49,249

35,663
92,416

59,439
1U,O27

118,878
308,055

29,557
76,594

Source: Nipomo Community Services District
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N ip omo C ommunity S eraices District

Sewer Customers (Town Division)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022* 2023 2024

Sinqle Family

Accounts 2,098

DUE's 2,098

Sinqle Familv Countv

Accounts 468

DUE's 468

473

473

469

469

2,109

2,109

374

816

2,153

2,298

470

470

375

634

75

78

3,073

3,480

2,174

2,322

2,183

2,U0

2,187

2,U4

476

476

393

657

77

79

3,133

3,556

2,217

2,378

477

477

3,165

3,593

2,257

2,295

482

482

393

777

u
u

3,216

3,638

2,2v

2,374

4U

4U

398

759

u
84

3,220

3,701

2,258

2,378

4U

4U

398

767

u
85

3,224

3,714

Multi-Familv

Accounts

DUE's

Commercial

Accounts

DUE's

Total

Accounts

DUE's

374

777

3,022

3,425

1'10

110

473

473

3,098

3,508

392

651

3,126

3,93

393

657

78

81

78

79

375

634

76

79

82

82

3,062

3,504

Source: Nipomo Community Services District
DUE = Divelling Unit Equi\alent
*DUE totals ha\e been reclassifed due to change in Ordinance related to the classif cation of Accessory Dwelling Units ftom

Single Family to Multi-family.
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N ip omo Community Sentices District

Sewer Gustomers (Blacklake Division)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Single Familv

Accounts

DUE's

Multi-Family

Accounts

DUE's

Commercial

Accounts

DUE's

Total

Accounts

DUE's

487

487

68

68

68

68

68

68

68

68

68

68

68

68

68

68

68

68

68

68

68

68

487

487

559

559

487

487

559

559

487

487

559

559

487

487

559

559

487

487

559

559

487

487

559

559

487

487

559

559

487

487

559

5s9

487

487

559

559

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

559

559

Source: Nipomo Community Services District
DUE = Dwelling Unit Equivalent
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Nipomo Community Seraices District

Monthly Residential Sewer Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year June 30,
20't5 2016 2017 201A 2019 2020 2021 2022* 2023 2024

Town
Single Family
ltulti Family

Black Lake
Single Family
Itulti Family

$ 88.32
67.33

145.51
95.08

$ 88.93
7414

$ 91.77
76.55

145.51
95.08

$ 94.71
79.00

145.51
95.08

$ 97.74
81.53

169.76
109.08

$100.87
u.14

$ 100.87
a4l4

230.40
148.O4

$ 52.27
43.58

1U.21
86.23

$ s4.25
45.23

147.63
94.86

$ 56.32
46.95

147.63
94.86

145.5'l
95.08

197.77
127.O7

Source: Nipomo Community Services District

*January 2022, Nipomo Community SeMces District went from bi-monthly billing to monthly billing
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Nipomo Community Seroices District

Monthly Commercial Sewer Rates (Town Division)
Last Ten FiscalYears

lvbnthly Service Charge

Fiscal Year Endecl .Irne 3o

1 inch and Less

11l2lnch

2 lnch

3 lnch

4 lnch

6 lnch

2015 2016

$ 34.07 $ 35.12

98.59 101.94

156.66 162.08

292.16 302.40

445.72 502.87

969.64 1,004.03

2017 201A 2019 2020 2021 ?022* 2023 2024

$36.24 $37.40 $38.60 $39.83 $39.83 $27.44 $28.48 $29.56
105.20 10a.57 112.04 115.63 115.63 79.02 82.02 85.14

167.26 172.62 178.14 183.84 183.84 125.44 130.20 135.15

312.08 322.07 332.37 343.01 343.01 233.75 242.64 251.86

518.96 535.57 552.70 570.39 570.39 388.49 403.25 418.57

1,036.16 1,069.31 1,103.53 1,138.85 1,138.85 775.33 804.7s 835.37

lvbnthly Usage Rate

Fiscal Year Ended June 30.

Low

N[edium

High

Source: Nipomo Community Services District
'January 2022, Nipomo Community Services District went from bi-monthly billing to monthly billing.

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022* 2029 2024

$ 2.89 $ 3.43 $ 3.s4 $ 3.66 $ 3.77 $ 3.89 $ 3.89 $ 3.87 $ 4.O2 $ 4.17

3.20 3.81 3.93 4.06 4.19 4.32 4.32 4.27 4.43 4.60

4.14 4.93 5.09 5.25 5.42 5.59 5.59 5.47 5.68 5.89
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N ip omo C ommunity S eraices District

Commercial Sewer Rates (Blacklake Division)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Ivbnthlv Service Charge

Fiscal Year Ended June 30.

1 inch and Less

1 12 lnch

2lnch

3 lnch

4lnch

6 lnch

20'15

$ 65.52

186.50

295.38

549.43

912.36

1,819.68

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022" 2023 2024

$ 65.52

186.50

295.38

549.43

912.36

I ,819.68

$ 65.52

186.50

295.38

u9.43

9'12.36

1.819_68

$ 65.52

186.50

295.38

549.43

91 2.36

1,819.68

88.35

233.45

364.U

668.75

1,104.05

2,192.30

$ 102.93

271.97

424.11

779.O9

'1,246.22

2,554.O3

$ 119.91

316.85

494.09

907.64

'l,498.45

2,975.44

$ 69.85

'184.56

247.80

524.70

872.A4

1,733.19

$ 76.83

203.O2

316.58

581.57

960.13

1.906.51

76.83

203.O2

316.58

581,57

960.13

1,906.51

$ $

il/bnthlv Usage Rate

Fiscal Year Ended June 30.

Low

t\bdium

High

Source: Nipomo Community Services District
"January 2022, Nipomo Community SeMces District went from bi-monthly billing to monthly billing.

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022* 2023 2024

$ 3.56 $ 3.56 $ 3.56 $ 3.56 $ 3,97 $ 4.63 $ 5.39 $ 6.2S $ 6.91 $ 6.91

4.80 4.80 4.80 4.80 5.2A 6.15 7.16 8.34 9.17 9.17

7.59 7.59 7.59 7.59 8.22 9.58 11.16 13.00 14.30 14.30
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Nipomo Community Sentices District

Sewer Capacity Gharges (Town Division)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Meter Size

1 inch and Less

11l2lnch

2lnch

3lnch

4lnch

6lnch

Source: Nipomo Community Services District

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
20'15 2016 2017 201A 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

$ 8,526

25,577

40,924

76,732

127,AA7

255,774

$ 8,685

26,055

41,689

78,166

130,276

260,552

$ 8,978

26,933

43,093

80,798

1 34,663

269,325

$ 9,306

27,917

44,668

83,751

1 39,584

279,169

$ 9,585

28,755

46,009

86,265

143,775

247,550

$ 9,774

29,322

46,915

87,965

146,608

293,216

$ 9,937

29,812

47,701

49,437

149,062

298,125

$ 10,435

31,306

50,090

93,918

156,530

313,060

$ 11,318

33,954

9,326

101,861

169,768

339,535

$ 11,565

34,695

55,513

1 04,085

173,475

346,951

-76-



Nipomo Community Sentices Distrtct

Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year
2024
2023
2022
2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015

Revenue
Bonds

Certificates

Participation

State
Revolving

Loan Funds
Subscription

liability

$ 57,936

Financed
Purchase
Pavable

Debt to
Assessed
Value (1)

0.94o/o

1.060/o

0.98%
0.98%
1.07o/o

1.14o/o

1.24o/o

1.35%
1A5%
1.59o/o

of
Total

$ 1,754,968 $
1,911,838
2,058,707
2,200,576
2,337,447
2,469,318
2,596,190
2,718,062
2,645,000
2,745,000

18,301,382 $
'18,732,770

1 9,1 54,1 58
16,862,901
17,221 ,783
17,535,665

17,834,547
18,'t28,429
18,580,000

18,870,000

$ 562,500 20,676,786
20,644,608
21,212,865
19,063,477
19,559,230
20,047,163
20,549,965
21,042,767
21,498,326
21,965,376

$

42,180
119,228
196,276
273,326
350,376

Source:
(1) Assessed Values can be found on the Historical Assessed Valuation table.

(2) Per Capita is based on number of Diskict water customers found in the Active Water Customers by Type Table
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N ip omo C ommunity S eraices District

Combined Pledged Revenue Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal

Year
2024
2023
2022
2021

2020
2019
20't8
2017
2016
2015

Gross
Revenue

Operating

Expensesl

Net Revenue
Available
For Debt

Service Principal lnterest Total
Coverage

Ratio
$ 12,501,502

12,071,415
11,017,439
10,522,444
9,609,312

8,556,185

7,463,973
7,032,142
6,487,650

5,748,796

$ (10,662,282)
(9,148,741)
(8,409,876)
(8,263,773)
(7,210,120)
(6,178,498)
(5,263,424)
(4,724,238)
(4,386,403)
(3,332,064)

$ 1,839,220 $
2,922,674
2,607,563

2,258,671

2,399,192

2,377,687

2,200,u9
2,307,904
2,101,247

2,416,732

56s,000 $

545,000
620,000
490,000
440,000
420,000
410,000
410,000
395,000
380,000

$ 1,327,592
1,311,939

1,438,398

1,298,68s

1,266,085

1,270,763
1,279,505

1,285,012
1,279,724

1,275,659

762,592
766,939

818,398

808,685

826,085

850,763

869,505

875,012
88/',724
895,659

1.28x
2.23x
1.81x

1.74x
1.89x
'1.89x

1.72x
1.82x
1.65x

1.89x

Source: Nipomo Community Services District
1 Excludes depreciation.
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Nip omo C ommunity S eraices District

Historical Assessed Valuation
Last Ten Fiscal Years

FiscalYear

Grossed Secured
Assessed
Valuation

Gross Unsecured
Assessed
Valuation

Homeowners'
Exemption

Adjusted
Assessed
Valuation

2024

2023

2022

2021

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

$ 2,236,874,821 $

2J26,314,543

1,992,461,908

1,947,740,574

1,828,875,688

1,760,058J42

1,662,029,112

1,563,409,451

1,487,428,335

1,386,410,743

22,428,167

19,357,194

19,241,866

20,366,954

18,518,514

17,854,673

15,281,841

14,102,670

13,828,632

15,592,808

$ (16,443,000) $

(16,563,400)

(16,692,200)

(16,650,200)

(16,563,400)

(16,560,600)

(16,497,600)

(16,562,000)

(16,739,800)

(16,675,400)

2,242,859,988

2,129j08,337

1,995,011,574

1,951,457,328

1,830,830,802

1,761,352,215

1,660,813,353

1,560,950,121

1,484,517,167

1,385,328,151

Source: County of San Luis Obispo Assessor
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N ip omo C ommunity S eruices D istrict

Property Tax Rates
TypicalTotalTax Rate (TRA 52-98)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

FiscalYear General

State
Water
Project

Lucia Mar
Unified
School
District

San Luis Obispo
Community

College
District Total

2024

2023

2022

2021

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

1.00000

1.00000

1.00000

1.00000

1.00000

1.00000

1.00000

1.00000

1.00000

1.00000

0.00363

0.00400

0.00400

0.00400

0.00400

0.00400

0.00400

0.00400

0.00374

0.00400

0.03500

0.03950

0.05878

o.05749

0.07234

0.08094

0.08194

0.03994

0.04094

0.04094

0.01925

0.01925

0.01925

0.01925

0.01925

0.01925

o.o't925

0.01925

0.01925

1.05788

1.06275

1.08203

1.08074

1.09559

1.10419

1.10519

1 .06319

1.06393

1.04494

Source: California Municipal Statistics, lnc.

-80-



N ip omo C ommunity S eroices District

Direct and Overlappang Debt Statement
As of June 30, 2024

2023-24 Assessed Valuation :

Overlappinq Tax and Assessment Debt
San Luis Obispo County Community College
District
Lucia Mar Unified School District
Nipomo Community Services District
Assessment District No. 2020-1

Total Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt

Direct ald Overlapping General Fund Debt
San Luis Obispo County General Fund
Obligations
San Luis Obispo County Pension Obligation
Bonds
Lucia Mar Unified School District General
Fund Obligations
Nipomo Community Services District
Total Direct and Overlapping General Fund
Debt

Revenue COP's Series 2013
Revenue Bonds 20134
Revenue Bonds 2022
Subscription Liability
Financed Purchase

Total Direct and Overlapping General Fund
Debt

Total Direct Debt
Total Overlapping Debt

Combined Total Debt 2

Ratios to 2023-2024 Assessed Valuation:
Total Direct Debt. . . .. .

Total Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt
Combined Total Debt...

$2,259,302,988

Total Debt 6130124

$205,380,000
146,249,802

'10,965,000

% Applicablel

3.1610k
11.714o/o

100.000%

District's Share of
Debt6130124

$ 6,492,062
17,131,702

10,965,000

$ 34,588,764

2,571,627

722,413

1,641,297

8,036,272
1,754,968

10,265,'110

57,936
562,500

25,612,123

20,676,786
39,524,101

60,200,887

$81,021,650

22,760,324

'14,015,000

8,036,272
1,7U,968

10,265,110
57,936

562,500

3.174Yo

3.1740k

11.711o/o

100.000o/o

100o/o

lOOo/o

100o/o

1000/

100o/o

$

$

$

$

$

0.00%
1.53o/o

1.75Yo

1 The percentage of overlapping debt applicable to the district is estimated using taxable assessed property value.
2 Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue and non-
bonded capital lease obligations.
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Nipomo Community Seruices District

Population of San Luis Obispo County and lncorporated Cities
(as ofJanuary 1)

2015 2016 20',17 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Area

Arroyo Grande

Atascadero

El Paso de

Robles

Grover Beach

lVbrro Bay

Pismo Beach

San Luis
Obispo (city)

Subtotal

Unincorporated

Total

17,428

29,169

30,522

'13,144

10,2U

7,711

45,802

154,060

't20,233

Z!2s3

17,73',1

30,879

31,398

13,397

10,722

8,181

46,',117

158,425

119,552

271 p77

17,736

30,900

31,745

13,438

10,762

8,247

46,724

159,552

120,ilg

zgqJ_ql

17,912

31,147

31,559

13,560

10,503

8,233

46,548

159,462

120,639

?gqJ_qr

17,876

30,405

31,244

13,533

10,439

8,239

46,802

158,538

121,855

?9q,399-

17,687

30,057

31,221

13,214

10,188

8,139

45,920

156,426

120,833

nl25s

17,555

29,623

31,073

13j28

10,121

8,108

46,058

155,666

115,506

N:J]Z

18,294

30,480

31,176

12,707

10,466

7,981

47,653

158,757

121,9U

280121

17,922

30,206

30,692

12,467

10,275

7,865

47,788

157,215

121,133

n$4q

17,941

30,279

30,907

12,481

10,261

7,846

48,684

158,399

120,070

?!3,46e

Source: State of California, Department of Finance
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N ip omo C ommunity S eraices District

San Luis Obispo Civilian Labor Force,
Employment and Unemployment Annual Average
Last Ten Calendar Years
(amounts expressed in thousands exce pt population and per capita)

The following Table compares estimates of the labor force, civlian employment and unemployment for County Resadents, State
Residents and United States Residents between 2O'15 and 20.24

CiVlian Unemployment
RateYear and Area Labor Force Employment Unemployment

2024
County
State
United States

2023
County
State
United States

2022
County
State
United States

2021
County
State
Unated States

2020
County
State
United States

2019
County
State
United States

2014
County
State
United States

2017
County
State
United States

2016
County
State
United States

2015
County
State
United States

'135,700

19,346,OOO

1 6a, OO9, OOO

1 40,400
19,444,OOO

'166,951,OOO

1 37,500
'19,350,OOO

1 64, 023, OOO

1 30,aoo
1a,a99,OOO

16'l,086,OOO

131 ,900
1 a,94a,OOO

1 59,932,OOO

''l 41 ,900
19,421,500

162,941,OOO

144,500
19,341 ,OOO

162, t40,OOO

142,900
19,1 3a,OOO

'160,145,OOO

147,200
1 9,1 02,OOO

1 5a,A80,OOO

'142,700
1 4,956, OOO

1 56,984,OOO

1 29,600
1a,346,OOO

161,199,OOO

1 35,700
1 a,537,OOO

1 60,994,OOO

134,100
1 a,545,OOO

1 54,1 1 1,OOO

123,200
't7,442,OOO

151 ,602,OOO

1 1 6,700
16,1 '1 7,OOO

142,142,OOO

137,700
1 a,607,aoo

1 57,OO5,OOO

I 39,aOO

1 a,527,OOO

1 55,576,OOO

137,600
14,237,OOO

1 53,16A,OOO

1 40,600
1 A,O79,OOO

1 51 ,O97,OOO

1 35,700
17,794,OOO

1 51 ,O97,OOO

6,1 00
1,OOO,OOO

6,al o,ooo

4,700
907,OOO

5,957,OOO

3,400
805,OOO

5,912,OOO

7,600
1,457,OOO

9,4A4,OOO

15,200
2,a31,OOO

17,750,OOO

4,200
413,700

5,976,OOO

4,700
a14,OOO

6,564,OOO

5,300
901,OOO

6.977.OOO

6,600
't,o23,ooo
7,7A3,OOO

7,OOO

1,162,000
5,aa7,ooo

11.5o/o

14.9o/o

11-1o/o

4.5o/o

5.2o/o

4.1o/o

3.3o/c

4.7o/o

3.60/o

2.5o/o

4.2o/o

3.60/o

5.ao/o

7.7o/o

5.9o/o

3.Oo/o

4.2o/o

3.7o/o

3.3o/o

4.2o/o

4.Oo/o

3.7o/o

4.7o/o

4.40/o

4.5o/o

5.4Yo

4.9Vo

4.9o/o

6.1 o/o

3.ao/o

Data is seasonally adjusted. The unemployment data tur the County and State is calculated using unrounded data-
Source: State Employment De\€lopment Department, Labor Market lnfomation Di\,ision, and U.S- Bureau of Labor Statistics
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N ip omo Community Seruices District

Major Employers in Gounty of San Luis Obispo
Current and Ten Years Ago

The following Table provides a listing of major employers headquartered or located in the Couniy and their estimated full-time
equivalent (FTE) em ployment levels.

2023 2014

Employer

Estimated Percent of
FTE County

Employment Ranking Employment

Estimated Percent of
FTE County

Employment Ranking Employment

2,573 2 1.B1Yo

2,800 1 1.970/o

2,300 3 1.62Yo

1,000 7 0.710/o

2,000 4 1.41o/o

1,200 6 0.85%

902 10 0.640/o

9358-
- 0 0.00%

1,700

906

_____19p1-a_

____!1,899_

1.20o/o

0.640/o

California Polytechnic State University

County of San Luis Opisbo

Department of State Hospitals - Atascadero

Lucia l/ar Unified School District

California ltlen's Colony

Tenet Healthcare Central Coast

San Luis Coastal Unified School District
Paso Robles Joint Unified School
Dishict

Compass Health

Cuesta College

Pacific Gas and Electric Company

Cal Poly Corporation

Total Top Employers

Total City Labor Force

3,143

2,932

2,000

1,573

1,517

1,425

1,388

1,232

1,200

892

---ll.3o2-
'139,800

1

2

?

4

5

7

a

o

10

2.25o/o

2.10o/o

1.43o/o

1.13Yo

1.09%

1.02o/o

0.99%

0.88%

0.86%

0.640/o

E

Sources:
2013-14 San Luis Obispo County Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

2022Pacific Coast Business Times Book of Lists
2022-23 County Budget Report.
State of California Employment Development Department
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N ip omo Community S entices District

District Employees
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

General lt/lanager

Administrative Staff

Operations Staff

Total

11111
44433
10 12 12 10 13

1

3

14

18

1

4

15

1

4

15

1

6

15

1

5

15

15 17 17 14 17 20 20 22 21
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N ip omo C ommunity Seroices District

Operating and Capital lndicators
Last Ten Fiscal Years

hlbter Svstem
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

No. of Wells

No. of Reservoirs
ilIax Reservoir
Capacity (l\IG)

Total Well Production
(Acre Feet)

Total Water
Purchased
(Acre Feet) ".
Total Deliveries
(Acre Feet)

No. of Service
Connections

No. ofTreatment
Plants

No. of Lift Stations

Daily Capacity of
Treatment Plant (lVG)

No. of Sewer
Connections
Annual Flow Treated
(IMG)

No. ofTreatment
Plants

No. of Lift Stations
Daily Capacity of
Treatment Plant (lvlc)

No. of Sewer
Connections

Annual Flow Treated
(r\4G)

5

E

4.0

2,1 60

2,110

4,285

q

4.0

1,162

653

1 ,815

4,300

5

4.5

950

859

1,809

4,309

5

o

4.5

1,054

966

2,020

4,331

5

6

4.5

880

970

1,850

4,343

5

b

4.5

1,026

970

'1,996

4,391

5

b

4.5

1,017

1,077

2,093

4,485

5

6

4.5

878

1,100

1,978

4,501

5

6

4.5

602

'1,1 1 6

1,718

4,509

5

o

4.5

680

1,140

1,820

4,513

Sewer SvsternTown Division
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

1

10

0.90

3,022

229

I

10

0.90

3,062

201

0.90

3,073

222

0.90

3,098

201

1

10

0.90

3,126

183

1

10

0.90

3,1 33

179

1

10

0.90

3,165

182

1

10

0.90

3,216

180

I
10

0.90

3,220

186

1

10

0.90

3,224

196

1

10

1

10

Sewer SvsternBlacklake Division
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

1111111111
3333333333

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

559 559 559 559 559 559 559 559 559 559

19 16 16 17 .16 16 16 16 16 16

Source: Nipomo Community Services District
** Nipomo Community Seruices District began purchasing supplemental water fi'om the City of Santa Mai'aon July 2,2015.
MG = million gallons
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Nipomo Community Serztices District

AnnualWater and Sewer Gapacity Fees Report
Required Disclosure Under Government Gode Section 66013

Beginning Balance of cash & investments
July 1,2023
Ending Balance of cash & investments
June 30, 2024

lnterest Earned

Capacity Charges

$ 3,758,311 $ 2,080,540 $

Fund #500
Supplemental

Water
Fund #700

Water Capacity

2,079,151

106,696

116

Fund #710
Town Sewer

Capacity

u7,964

596,161

29,179

23,U7

Public lmprovements on which charges were expended and the amount of the expenditure for each
improvement:

4,347,028

632,909

301

Fund #
Capital lmprovement

Supplemental Water
Project - lnterconnect
Design

Supplemental Water
Project - lnterconnect
Construction

FoothillTank Site
Water Distribution

lmprovements

Amount of the
expenditure for each

lmprovement

Project
completed

during fiscal
year

$ 143,843 No

No

No

No

500

500

700

700

't17,202

77394

9,453

Source: Nipomo Community Services District

Anticipated Capital lmprovement Projects lor 2024-2O25 fiscal Year:

Supplemental Water Project lnterconnects
Pomeroy Water Line
Third connection to Blacklake Pressure Zone
New Water Storage Tank - FoothillTank Site
Southland WWTF lmprovements
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N ip omo C ommunity Serztices District

Gost of Nipomo SupplementalWater Purchased
From the City of Santa Maria

Fiscal
Year

(a)

Total
Acre Feet
Purchased

(b)

Total Cost
Per Acre
Foot (g)

(a) x (b)

Cost of
Water

Purchased
FY 23-24
FY 23-24
FY 22-23
FY 22-23
FY 21-22
FY 21-22
FY 20-21
FY 20-21
FY 19-20
FY 19-20
FY 18-19
FY 17-18

$ 2,545.40
2,488.48
2,488.48
2,275.84
2,275.84
2,203.78
2,203.78
2,123.73
2,123.73
1 ,695.1 0
1,701 .18

1 ,649.18

$'1,310,880
1,493,088

1,266,636

1,324,539
1,208,471
't,187,837

1,097,482
1,178,670

983,287
825,514

1,616,121

1,558,475

16.66%

GSW

515
600

509

582
531

539
498
555

463
487

950

945

Allocation of Cost of Nipomo Supplemental Water to Partner Purveyors

Fiscal
Year

66.68%
NCSD

16.66%
Wl\A /

100.00%
Total

FY 23-24
FY 23-24
FY 22-23
FY 22-23
FY 21-22
FY 21-22
FY 20-21
FY 20-21
FY '19-20

FY 19-20
FY 18-19
FY 17-18

Effective Date
of Rate Change

1t1t2024
1t1t2023
1t1t2022
1t1t2021
1t1t2020
7t1t2019
7t1t2018
7t1t2017
7t1t2016

$ 874,094 $
995,590
844,592
883,203
805,809
792,048
731,797
785,938
655,656
550,453

'1,077,629

1 ,039,1 91

(c)
Base Cost

Per Unit (hcf)

218,393 $
248,749
211,022
220,668
201,331
197,893
182,840
196,366
163,816
137,531
269,246
259,642

218,393 $
248,749
211,022
220,668
201,331
197,893

182,840
196,366
163,816

137,531

269,246
259,642

1 ,310,880
1,493,088
1,266,636
1,324,539
1,208,471
1,187,834
1,097,477
1J78,670

983,288
825,515

1,616,121
1,558,475

City of Santa [\lhria Supplemental Water Rates

(d)

Units
Per AF

(e)
(c) x (d)

Base
Cost per AF

(f)
Energy Cost
Component

(e)+(D=(s)
Total Cost Per

Acre Foot
$ 5.63

5.37
5.16
4.96
4.77
3.79
3.79
3.79
3.61

435.60
435.60
435.60
435.60
435.60
435.60
435.60
435.60
435.60

92.97
149.31
28.14
43.19
45.92
45.92
52.00

$ 2,452.43 $
2,339.17
2,247.70
2,160.59
2,077.81
1 ,649.1 8
1 ,649.1 I
1 ,649.1 8
'l ,570.77

$ 2,545.40
2,488.48
2,275.84
2,203.78
2,123.73
1 ,695.'1 0
1,701.18
1 ,649.1 I
1,587.7717.00

NCSD = Nipomo Community Services District
WI\M/ = Woodlands Mutual Water Company
GSW = Golden State Water Company

FY 2015-2016 is the first year available.

Source: Nipomo Community Services District
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November 6,2A24

To the Board of Directors
Nipomo Community Services District
Nipomo, California

We have audited the financial statements of the Nipomo Community

Services District (the entity) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and

have issued our report thereon dated November 6, 2024. Professional

standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our

audit.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit

As communicated in our engagement letter dated April 16, 2024, our

responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to form and

express opinions about whether the financial statements that have been

prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all

maierial respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United states of America. our audit of the financial

statements does not relieve you or management of your respective

responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and

perform our audit to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An

audit of financial statements includes consideration of the system of internal

control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control

over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the

system of internal control of the entity solely for the purpose of determining
our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such

internal control.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the

audit that are, in our professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities
in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not required

to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to

communicate to You.

We have provided our findings regarding material weaknesses over

financial reporting noted during our audit in a separate letter to you dated

November 6,2024.
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Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to
you.

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding lndependence

The engagement team, others in our flrm, as appropriate, and our firm have complied with all relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence.

We have evaluated whether certain nonattest services performed by our firm during the audit have
created a significant threat to our independence in relation to the entity. We have identified a threat to our
independence (preparation of the entity's financial statements, creating a self-review threat) that if not
reduced to an acceptable level, would impair our independence. ln order to reduce the threat to an
acceptable level, we have applied the following safeguard:

Prior to the issuance of the entity's financial statements, another partner or manager,
independent of the engagement, will review the financial statements.

Significant Risks ldentified

We have identified the possibility of the following significant risks

Management's overide of intemal controls over financial reporting - Management override of
internal controls is the intervention by management in handling financial information and making
decisions contrary to internalcontrol policy.

Revenue recognition - Revenue recognition is a generally accepted accounting principle that
refers to the conditions under which an entity can recognize a transaction as revenue. Auditing
standards indicate that recognizing revenue is a presumed fraud risk and usually classified as a
significant risk in most audits.

These significant risks are presumptive in most audits and merit attention by the auditors due to the direct
impact over financial reporting and internal control processes. Although identified as significant risks, we
noted no matters of management override of controls or deviations from generally accepted accounting
principles which caused us to modify our audit procedures or any related matters which are required to be
communicated to those charged with governance due to these identified risks.

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity's Significant Accounting Practices

S ig n ificant Accounti ng Pol icie s

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the entity is included in Note 1 to the financial statements.
There have been no initial selection of accounting policies or their application during 2024. No matters
have come to our attention that would require us; under professional standards, to inform you about (1)
the methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant
accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance
or consensus.
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S ig n if i c a nt Acco u n t i n g Esfmaf es a n d Rel ate d Dr.sc/osures

Accounting estimates and related disclosures are an integral part of the financial statements prepared
by management and are based on management's current judgments. Those judgments are normally
based on knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future
events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
markedly from management's current judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the entity's financial statements are:

Management's estimate of capital asset depreciation is based on historical estimates of each
capitalized item's useful life. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the
estimated useful lives in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements
taken as a whole.

The estimate of the other post-employment benefits and related deferred amounts are based on
actuarial reports provided by independent actuaries. We evaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to develop the estimate in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

Management's estimate of the net pension liability and related deferred amounts are based on
actuarial reports provided by independent actuaries. We evaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to develop the estimate in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

F in ancial State ment Dlsc/osures

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to financial statement users.

The most sensitive disclosures affecting the entity's financial statements relate to:

The disclosure of accumulated depreciation in the financial statements is based on estimated
useful lives which could differ from actual useful lives of each capitalized item.

The disclosure of the other post-employment benefits (OPEB) and related deferred amounts in
the basic financial statements identifies the annual OPEB cost and the funded status of the
actuarial accrued liability. The information disclosed is based on actuarial assumptions which
could differ from actual costs.

The disclosure of net pension liability and related deferred amounts in the financial statements is
based on actuarial assumptions. Actual future liabilities may vary from disclosed estimates.

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the
audit.
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Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate
them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also
communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of
transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole and each
applicable opinion unit. There were no uncorrected misstatements noted.

ln addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected
misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures.
None of the misstatements identified by us as a result of our audit procedures and corrected by
management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a
whole or applicable opinion unit.

Disag reements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, which could be significant to the entity's financial statements or the auditor's report. No such
disagreements arose during the course of the audit.

Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the attached
letter dated November 6,2024.

Management's Consultations with Other Accountants

ln some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other
accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or lssues

ln the normal course of our professional association with the entity, we generally discuss a variety of
matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, significant events or
transactions that occurred during the year, operating and regulatory conditions affecting the entity, and
operational plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters
discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as the entity's auditors.

Other lnformation lncluded in Annual Reports

Pursuant to professional standards, our responsibility as auditors for other information, whether financial
or nonfinancial, included in the entity's annual reports, does not extend beyond the information identified
in the audit report, and we are not required to perform any procedures to corroborate such other
information. However, in accordance with such standards, we have:

Read the transmittal letter and statistical section and considered whether a material inconsistency
existed between the other information and the basic financial statements, or the other information
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do
not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance
thereon
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Our responsibility also includes communicating to you any information which we believe is a material
misstatement of fact. Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that such information, or its
manner of presentation, is materially inconsistent with the information, or manner of its presentation,
appearing in the financial statements.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management of
the entity and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

toVu', I*4"tto*, 2 /r-tt, LLP,
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November 6,2024

Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott, LLP

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the basic financial statements of
Nipomo Community Services District (the entity) as of June 30,2024, and for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of expressing opinions on whether the basic
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position, results of operations, and
cash flows, where applicable, of the various opinion units of the entity in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted for governments in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. ltems are
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting
information such that, in the light of surrounding circumstances, there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the financial statements.

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves as of November 6,2024:

Financial Statements

We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated
April 16, 2024, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements of the various
opinion units referred to above in accordance with U.S. GAAP.
We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of the system
of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control to prevent and detect fraud.
We acknowledge our responsibility for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of
contracts and grant agreements.
We have reviewed, approved, and taken responsibility for the financial statements and related
notes.
We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.
We have identified and communicated to you all previous audits, attestation engagements, and
other studies related to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been
implemented.
The methods, data and significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates and
their related disclosures, are appropriate to achieve recognition, measurement, or disclosure that
is reasonable in the context of the applicable financial reporting framework.

a

a

a

a
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Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott, LLP

. All related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP.

. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which U.S. GAAP requires
adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

r We have reviewed and approved the various adjusting journal entries that were proposed by you
for recording in our books and records and reflected in the financial statements.r The effects of all known actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

. All component units, as well as joint ventures with an equity interest, if any, are included and other
joint ventures and related organizations are properly disclosed.

. All funds and activities are properly classified.
r All components of net position are properly classified and, if applicable, approved.. Our policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or unrestricted resources when an expense is

incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available is
appropriately disclosed and net position is properly recognized under the policy.

. All interfund and intra-entity transactions and balances have been properly classified and reported.. Special items and extraordinary items have been properly classified and reported.. Deposit and investment risks have been properly and fully disclosed.

. Capitalassets, including infrastructure assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and if applicable,
depreciated.

. All required supplementary information is measured and presented within the prescribed
guidelines.

. We have evaluated all of our lease and subscription agreements and have given you our
assessment as to whether each agreement is subject to GASB Statement No. 87, Leases and
GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription Based lnformation Technology Anangements.. With regard to investments and other instruments reported at fair value:
- The underlying assumptions are reasonable and they appropriately reflect management's

intent and ability to carry out its stated courses of action.* The measurement methods and related assumptions used in determining fair value are
appropriate in the circumstances and have been consistenfly applied.

- The disclosures related to fair values are complete, adequate, and in accordance with U.S.
GAAP.
There are no subsequent events that require adjustments to the fair value measurements and
disclosures included in the financial statements.

. With respect to preparation of the financial statements, we have performed the following:
Made all management decisions and performed all management functions;

- Assigned a competent individual to oversee the services;
- Evaluated the adequacy of the services performed;

Evaluated and accepted responsibility for the result of the service performed; and
Established and maintained internal controls, a process to monitor the system of internal
controls.

. There have been no changes or updates to legal information disclosed to you by our attorney(s)
since the date of such legal response and now.

lnformation Provided

We have provided you with:

- Access to all information, of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements of the various opinion units referred to above, such as
records, documentation, meeting minutes, and other matters;

- Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and
- Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to

obtain audit evidence.

a



Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott, LLP

. The financial statements and any other information included in the annual report are consistent with
one another, and the other information does not contain any material misstatements.. All information provided in electronic form are true representations of the original documents.. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial
statements.

r We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

r We have provided to you our analysis of the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, including
significant conditions and events present, and we believe that our use of the going concern basii
of accounting is appropriate.

. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the entity and involves:
- Management;

- Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
- Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.r We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the entity's
financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, vendors, regulators, 

-or

others.
. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible, claims, and assessments whose effects

should be considered when preparing the financial statements.
. We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity's related parties and all the related party

relationships and transactions of which we are aware.
r There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with or

deficiencies in accounting, internalcontrol, orfinancial reporting practices.
. The entity has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification

of assets and liabilities.
. We have disclosed to you all guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the entity is

contingently liable.
r We have disclosed to you all nonexchange financial guarantees, underwhich we are obligated and

have declared liabilities and disclosed properly in accordance with GASB Statemenl No. 70,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees. for those guarantees
where it is more likely than not that the entity will make a payment on any guarantee.

. We have disclosed to you all significant estimates and material concentrations known to
management that are required to be disclosed in accordance with GASB Statement No. 62 (GASB-
62), Codification of Accounting and Financial Repofting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30,
1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. Significant estimates are estimates at the balance sheet
date that could change materially within the next year. Concentrations refer to volumes of business,
revenues, available sources of supply, or markets or geographic areas for which events could occur
that would significantly disrupt normal finances within the next year.

. We have identified and disclosed to you the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements that could have a direct and materialeffect on financialstatement amounts, including
legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.r There are no:

- Violations or possible violations of laws or regulations, or provisions of contracts or grant
agreements whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements or
as a basis for recording a loss contingency, including applicable budget laws and regulations.

- Unasserted claims or assessments that our lawyer has advised are probable of assertion and
must be disclosed in accordance with GASB-62.

- Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or disclosed by
GAS8-62

- Continuing disclosure consent decree agreements or filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and we have filed updates on a timely basis in accordance with the agreemenls
(Rule 240, 15c2,12).



Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott, LLp

r The entity has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on
such assets nor has any asset or future revenue been pledged as collateral, except as disclosed
to you.

. We have complied with all aspects of grant agreements and other contractual agreements that
would have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

Use of a Specialist

I

a

We agree with the findings of specialists in evaluating the entity's net pension and net other post-
employment benefit liabilities and related deferred amounts and have adequately considered the
qualifications of the specialist in determining the amounts and disclosures used in the financial
statements and underlying accounting records. We did not give or cause any instructions to be
given to specialists with respect to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work,
and we are not otherwise aware of any matters that have had an impact on the independence or
objectivity of the specialists.

Cybersecurity

There have been no cybersecurity breaches or other cyber events whose effects should be
considered for disclosure in the financial statements, as a basis for recording a loss contingency,
or otherwise considered when preparing the financial statements.

,W
Raymond
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

G OVERN M EN T AU D ITI N G SIANDARDS

I ndepe nde nt Aud itol s Repo rt

To the Board of Directors
Nipomo Community Services District

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing sfandards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auctiting Sfandards),
the financial statements of the businesstype activities of the Nipomo
Community Services District (the entity) as of and for the year ended June 30,
2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the entity's basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated November 6,2024.

Report on lnternal Control over Financial Reporting

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we
considered the entity's internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.

A deficiency in internal confrol exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on
a timely basis. A material u/eakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might 

-be 
material

weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant dlficiencies may
exist that were not identified. We identified certain deficiency in internal Control, described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses as item 2024-001 that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

Report on Compliance and Other Malters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the entity's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Sfandards.

Entity's Response to Findings

Government Auditing Sfandards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the entity's response
to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Responses. The entity's response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in thi audit
of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Repoft

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

t"7grls,, 4*ett-to* 2 /r-t, LLP.rry
San Bernardino, California
November 6,2024
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Nipomo Community Services District

Schedule of Findings and Responses

For the year ended June 30, 2024

Finding 2024-OO1- Journal Entries & Bank Reconciliations
Material Weakness

Criteia and Condition

During our audit of the District, we noted a lack of segregation of duties in the District's accounting process,
including the journal entry process and bank reconciliation review process. Proper segregation of duties
dictates that the functions of recording, authorization, custody and execution are not dominated by one
individual. An adequate segregation of duties requires that one individual does not handle a transaction
from its inception to its completion. Adequately segregated duties helps to reduce the possibility of fraud
and defalcations from occurring and to ensure the integrity of the information provided by the District's
financial reporting system.

Context

We observed inadequate segregation of duties by performing observations of processes and interviews of
personnel and management.

Effect or Potential Effect

Without sufficient segregation of duties, the risk significantly increases that errors and fraud related to
financial reporting, including misappropriation of assets, could occur and not be detected within a timely
basis.

Auditols Recom mendation

An adequate segregation of duties requires that one individual does not handle a transaction from its
inception to its completion. However, we realize that this is due to the limited number of individuals available
to the District to perform numerous, and sometimes incompatible duties. Unless more personnel are hired,
there may be no practical corrective action possible for this inherent weakness. We believe it is important
for management and the Board of Directors to be aware that whenever a limited number of people are in
control of the accounting process, the system is far more susceptible to errors or other irregularities, either
intentional or unintentional, not being discovered.

Vlews of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions

Management recognizes the auditor's concerns and, within the reality of staffing constraints, will continue
to work to address the segregation of duties with a goal of removing the comment entirely from the
management letter. We share the goal of improving all measures of internal control wherever feasible.
NCSD is a small special district, with a very limited number of administrative staff. To increase the size of
the administrative staff to be able to increase the segregation of accounting duties, NCSD would likely be
required to cut Operations staff, reducing our ability to provide services to our community. We note that, to
our knowledge, the district has never experienced material fraud or adverse impacts to our financial
reporting and we are pleased that none was identified in this audit. The comment is noted and management
will continue to attempt to find ways to address it.
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